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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Thirty Nine (39t) Annual General Meeting of the members of
CPL Industries Limited will be held at the registered office of the Company on Saturday, the 28t
day of September 2024, at 11:00 a.m. at 14, Taratolla Road, Kolkata - 700 088 to transact the
following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

Item No 1. - Adoption of Standalone financial statements

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company
for the year ended 31stMarch, 2024 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and
Auditors thereon.

Item No 2. - Adoption of Consolidated financial statements

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company
for the year ended 31stMarch, 2024 together with the report of Auditors thereon.

Item No 3.- Appointment of Director liable to retire by rotation

To appoint a director in place of Mr. Subhankar Banerjee (DIN: 00137649), who retires by
rotation at this Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
Item No. 4 : Appointment of Mrs. Sangita Agarwal (DIN: 01097017) as an Independent

Director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following Resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Sections 152, 161 and all other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules,
2014, including any enactment, re-enactment or modifications thereof, Ms. Sangita Agarwal
(DIN:01097017) who was appointed as Additional Director by the Board of Directors of the company
at their meeting held on 03.05.2024, and who holds office up to the date of this Annual General
Meeting be and is hereby appointed as the Director of the Company.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of theCompanies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder read with
Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, or anyamendment or modification thereof, and
Regulation 17 and other applicable Regulations of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Ms. Sangita Agarwal (DIN:
01097017), Independent Director of the Company, who has submitted a declaration that she
meets the criteria for independence as provided in the Act and Listing Regulations, and who is
eligible for appointment, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has recommended her
appointment to the Board, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the
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Company for a term of two years with effect from 3rd May, 2024, not liable to retire by
rotation.”

Item No.5 Appointment of Mr. Pawan Kumar Tiwari (DIN: 03642702) as an Independent
Director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following Resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Sections 152, 161 and all other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Appointment and Qualification
of Directors) Rules, 2014, including any enactment, re-enactment or modifications thereof, Mr.
Pawan Kumar Tiwari (DIN: 03642702) who was appointed as Additional Director by the Board
of Directors of the company at their meeting held on 03.05.2024, and who holds office up to the
date of this Annual General Meeting be and is hereby appointed as the Director of the Company.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder read with
Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, or any amendment or modification thereof, and
Regulation 17 and other applicable Regulations of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Mr. Pawan Kumar Tiwari
(DIN:03642702), Independent Director of the Company, who has submitted a declaration that
he meets the criteria for independence as provided in the Act and Listing Regulations, and who
is eligible for appointment, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has recommended
his appointment to the Board, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the
Company for a term of two years with effect from 3rd May, 2024, not liable to retire by rotation.”

Registered Office:By order of the Boardfor CPL Industries Limited

14, Taratolla Road

Kolkata - 700 088 Sd/-
Aashika Agarwal
Company Secretary
Membership No.- 36914

Place: Kolkata

Date:03.05.2024
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NOTES:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO
APPOINT A PROXY, TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND SUCH

A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

2. Proxies in order to be effective, must be received by the Company, duly filled, stamped and
signed, at its Registered Office not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the

Meeting.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the
aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying
voting rights. A member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company
carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as

a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

3. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the
meeting are requested to send the Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution

authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting.

4.  The Register of Members and Share Transfer books of the Company shall remain closed from

22.09.2024 to 28.09.2024 (both days inclusive).

5. Members/proxies/authorized representatives are requested to bring the duly filled
attendance slip to attend the Annual General Meeting along with their copy of Annual

Report.

6. In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the

order of names will be entitled to vote at the meeting.

7. Members who are holding shares in the demat form are requested to bring their Depository
ID Number and Client ID Number to facilitate easier identification for attendance at the
meeting.

8. Members desirous of asking any questions at the Annual General Meeting and desiring any

information as regards the Accounts are requested to write to the Company at least ten days
before the date of Annual General Meeting so as to enable the Management to keep the

information ready.

9. Keeping in view the “Green Initiative in Corporate Governance” of Ministry of Corporate
Affairs and in continuation to the practice adopted in previous years, the Company proposes
to continue to send notices / documents including annual reports, etc. to the members in
electronic form. Members who have still not registered their email addresses are requested
to register their email addresses, in respect of electronic holdings with the Depository
through the concerned Depository Participants and in respect of physical holdings with the
Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, CB Management Services Private

Limited, 20 R N Mukherji Road, Chowringhee, Kolkata- 700069.
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The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of
Permanent Account Number (PAN) and Bank particulars by every participant in the
securities market.

submit their PAN and Bank details to their Depository Participant and shareholders holding
shares in physical form are requested to submit their PAN and Bank details to the Company’s
Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, CB Management Services Private Limited, 20 R N
Mukherji Road, Chowringhee, Kolkata- 700069. Those shareholders who has already
updated/provided the above said details need not require sending the same again.

The Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2024 and
reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors’ Report thereon and all other documents
required by law to be annexed or attached to the Financial Statements shall be available for
inspection at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days during business
hours between 11.00 a.m. and 2.00 p.m. up to the date of ensuing date of Annual General
Meeting.

Voting through Electronic means:

In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the
Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and
Regulation 44 of the Securities And Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations And
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide
members facility to exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed to be
considered at the 39t Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the
business may be transacted through e-Voting Services. For this purpose, the Company
has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL)
for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting’s agency.
The facility of casting the votes by the members using an electronic voting system
from a place other than venue of the AGM (“remote e-voting”) will be provided by
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL).

The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM and the
members attending the meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall
be able to exercise their right at the meeting through ballot paper. The members who
have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM but
shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

The process and manner for remote e-voting are as under:

i.  The voting period begins on Wednesday, 25th September, 2024 at 9.00 a.m. and ends
on Friday, 27 September, 2024 at 5.00 p.m. During this period shareholders’ of the
Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the
cut-off date Friday, 30th August, 2024 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting
module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter.
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iil.
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Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled

to vote at the meeting venue.

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December
9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders
holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account
maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised
to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access

e-Voting facility.

Instructions for e-voting and joining the AGM are as follows:

a.

VOTINGTHROUGHELECTRONICMEANS

In compliance with section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules 2014, substituted by
Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules 2015 and
Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulation,
2015, and in terms of SEBI vide circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/
CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 in relation to e-Voting Facility Provided
by Listed Entities, the Members are provided with the facility to cast their vote
electronically, through the e-Voting services provided by NSDL, on all the
resolutions set forth in this Notice.

The remote e-voting will commence on Wednesday, 25th September, 2024 at
9.00 a.m. and ends on Friday, 27 September, 2024 at 5.00 p.m. (IST). During
this period, members of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 30th August, 2024, may cast their vote
by remote e-voting. The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made
available at the Annual General Meeting and the members attending the meeting
who have not caste their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their
right at the meeting through ballot paper. The remote e-voting module shall be
disabled by NSDL shall be disabled thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is caste
by the member, the member shall not be allowed to change subsequently.

The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the Annual
General Meeting may also attend AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote
again.

Any person holding shares in physical form and non-individual shareholders, who
acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after
sending of the Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date, may obtain the login
ID and password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in. If the member forgets
the password, the member can reset his password by using “Forget User
Details/password or “Physical User Reset Password” option available on hyperlink
"http://www.evoting.nsdl.com” www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no. 1800
1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30. However, if he / she is already registered with NSDL
for remote e-Voting then he /she can use his / her existing User ID and password
for casting the vote. In case of Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat
mode and who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the
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iii.

Company after sending of the Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date may
follow steps of remote e-voting as mentioned below under.

The process and manner for remote e-voting are as under:
How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which
are mentioned below: -

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join virtual meeting on NSDL e-
Voting system.

Details on Step 1 are mentioned below:

Pursuant to SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/ CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated
December 9, 2020 on “e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies”, Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their
demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and e-mail ID with their
DPs in order to access e-Voting facility.

Type of Login Method

Shareholders

Individual A. NSDL IDeAS facility

Shareholders If you are already registered, follow the below steps:
holding . . .

1. Visit the e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by
securities in typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com/
demat mode either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.
with NSDL

. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the

“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available
under “IDeAS” section.

. Anew screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID

and Password. After successful authentication, you will be
able to see e-Voting services.

. Click on “Access to e-Voting” appearing on the left hand

side under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-
Voting page.

. Click on options available against company name or e-

Voting service provider - NSDL and you will be re-directed
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2.

w

to NSDL e-Voting website for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting and e-
Voting during the meeting.

If you are not registered, follow the below steps:

1. Option to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.

Select “Register Online for IDeAS” Portal or click

athttps://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.js
p.

Please follow steps given in points 1-5 of Pt. A.

e-Voting website of NSDL

Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a personal
computer or on a mobile phone.

. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click

on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID
(i.e., your sixteen-digit demat account number held with
NSDL), Password / OTP and a Verification Code as shown
on the screen.

After successful authentication, you will be redirected to
NSDL website wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on
options available against company name or e-Voting
service provider - NSDL and you will be redirected to e-
Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting and e-
Voting during the meeting.

C.E-Voting through NSDL App

Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile
App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code
mentioned below for seamless voting experience.
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NSDL Mobile App is available on

.' App Store ' Google Play

Type of Login Method

Shareholders

Individual 1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, can
Shareholders login through their user id and password. Option will

be made available to reach e-Voting page without any

holdin
8 further authentication. The URL for users to login to

securities in

q d Easi / Easiest are
e?mat mode https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or
with CDSL www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi.

2. After successful login of Easi / Easiest the user will be
also able to see the e-Voting Menu. The Menu will have
links of ESP i.e. NSDL portal. Click on NSDL to cast your
vote.

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to
register is available at https:
//web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration /  Easi
Registration. Alternatively, the user can directly access
e-Voting page by providing demat Account Number
and PAN from alink in www.cdslindia.com home page.
The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP
on registered Mobile and e-mail as recorded in the
demat Account. After successful authentication, user
will be provided links for the respective ESP i.e. NSDL
where the e-Voting is in progress.

Type of Login Method

Shareholders

Individual 1. You can also login using the login credentials of your
Shareholders demat account through your DP registered with NSDL
(holding / CDSL for e-Voting facility.

securities in

demat mode)
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their depository

participants

logging through 2. Oncelogged-in, you will be able to see e-Voting option.
Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be
redirected to NSDL / CDSL Depository site after
successful authentication, wherein you can see e-
Voting feature.

Click on options available against company name or e-
Voting service provider - NSDL and you will be
redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining
virtual meeting and e-Voting during the meeting.

Important note:Members who are unable to retrieve User ID / Password are
advised to use Forgot User ID and Forgot Password option available at

respective websites.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for
any technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type

Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in
demat mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can
contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 022-4886
7000 and 022-2499 7000

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in
demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or  contact at
1800-22 55 33

B. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Shareholders
other than individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and
shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL: https://www.evoting. nsdl.com. either on computer or on

laptop.

2 Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login”
which is available under ‘Shareholders’section.

3 Anewscreenwillopen.YouwillhavetoenteryourUserID,yourPasswordandaV
erificationCodeasshownon thescreen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-
in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-
in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and
you can proceed to Step-2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4. Your User ID details will be as per details given below:
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Manner of holding shares
i.e. Demat ( NSDL or
CDSL) or Physical

Your User ID is:

a) For Members who
hold shares in demat
account with NSDL

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID (For
example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is
12*%4*** then your user ID is IN3(QQ***] 2##xkokx

b) For Members who
hold shares in demat
account with CDSL

16 Digit Beneficiary ID (For example if your

Beneficiary ID is 12*#*##skicdidd* then your user

c) For Members holding
shares in Physical
Form

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number
registered with the company (For example if folio
number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then user ID

is 101456001***

Your password details are given below:

If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can use your existing
password to login and cast your vote.

If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to
retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you
retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need enter the ‘initial password’ and the
system will force you to change your password.

How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

(1) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the
company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email
ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the
email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The
password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account,
last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held
in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial
password’.

(ii) In case you have not registered your email address with the Company/
Depository, please follow instructions mentioned below in this notice.

If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or
have forgotten your password:

Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?” (If you are holding shares in
your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

“Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical
mode) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can
send a request at evoting@nsdlco.in mentioning your demat account
number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address.

Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting
the votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL.

After entering your password, click on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by
selecting on the check box.
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8 Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Details on Step 2 are mentioned below:
How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system?

1  After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see the Home page of e-Voting. Click
on e-Voting. Then, click on Active Voting Cycles.

2 After click on Active Voting Cycles, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in
which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active status.

3 Select “EVEN ” of the Company.
4. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

5 Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the
number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also
“Confirm” when prompted.

6. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

7. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on
the confirmation page.

8 Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your
vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

Institutional / Corporate shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) are required
to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter
etc, with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are
authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by email to agarwalvj18@gmail.com with a copy marked
to evoting@nsdl.co.in.Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can
also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking
on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login.

[tis strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost
care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon
five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to
go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option
available on https://www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

In case of any queries relating to e-voting you may refer to the FAQs for Shareholders and e-
voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 022-4886-7000 or send a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in.

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories
for procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the
resolutions set out in this notice:


mailto:cplindustries19@gmail.com
http://www.cplindustries.org.in/
mailto:patnaikandpatnaik@yahoo.comw
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in.
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in.

CPL Industries Limited

CIN: L74210WB1982P1.C035417
Registered Office: 14 Taratolla Road Kolkata 700088, India
Email: cplindustries19@gmail.com, Tel: 033 3984 9417, Website: www.cplindustries.org.in

. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder,

scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN
card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to
cplindustries19@gmail.com

. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16

digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to
cplindustries19@gmail.com. If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat
mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method
for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring

user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed

Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.
Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their
demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.

Other Instructions

1.

Mr. Bijay Agarwal, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. FCS 10323) Proprietor of
M/s. BA & Associates, Company Secretaries has been appointed by the Board of Directors as
the Scrutinizer for providing facility to the members of the Company, to scrutinize the remote
e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the
votes cast during the AGM, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting and
prepare, not later than 2 working days of conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer's
Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorised
by him in writing, who shall countersign the same.

The result declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the Company's
websiteand on the website of NSDL https://www.evoting.nsdl.com immediately after the
declaration of the results by the Chairman or person authorized by him in writing.
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Statement Pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013

As required under Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 ('The Act'), the following
explanatory statements set out all material facts relating to the business mentioned under items
no.4 & 5 of the accompanying Notice.

Item No. 4

The Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has
recommended for approval of members, the appointment of Ms. Sangita Agarwal as an
Independent Director of the Company for a term of twoyears with effect from 17th May 2024, in
terms of Section 149 and other applicable provisions read with Schedule IV of theCompanies Act,
2013, or any amendments thereto or modification thereof (“ the Act”) and Regulation 17 of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

Notice under Section 160 of the Act proposing the appointment of Ms. Sangita Agarwal has been
received. Requisite consent pursuant to Section 152 of the Act, has been filed byMs. Sangita
Agarwal.

In the view of your Board, the association Ms. Sangita Agarwal and the rich experience she brings
with her, would benefit the Company. Declaration has been received from Ms. Sangita Agarwal
that she meets the criteria of Independence prescribed under Section149 of the Act read with the
Companies (Appointment and qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 16 of SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015. In the opinion of your Board Ms. Sangita Agarwal fulfills the conditions
specified in the Act, the Rules thereunder and the Listing Regulations for reappointment as
Independent Director and she is Independent of the Management of the Company. Ms. Sangita
Agarwal does not hold any share in the Company in his individual capacity.

None of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/or their relatives,
except Ms. Sangita Agarwal, in any way, are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in
the resolution set out in item No. 4 of the Notice. The Board of Directors of the company
recommends the resolution set out in item No. 4 as Special Resolution for approval of the
members.

Item No. 5

The Board on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has
recommended for approval of members, the appointment of Mr. Pawan Kumar Tiwari as an
Independent Director of the Company for a term of two years with effect from 3rdMay 2024, in
terms of Section 149 and other applicable provisions read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act,
2013, or any amendments thereto or modification thereof (“ the Act”) and Regulation 17 of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

Notice under Section 160 of the Act proposing the appointment of Mr. Pawan Kumar Tiwari has
been received. Requisite consent pursuant to Section 152 of the Act, has been filed by Mr. Pawan
Kumar Tiwari.
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In the view of your Board, the association Mr. Pawan Kumar Tiwari and the rich experience he
brings with him, would benefit the Company. Declaration has been received from Mr. Pawan
Kumar Tiwari that he meets the criteria of Independence prescribed under Section 149 of the Act
read with the Companies (Appointment and qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and
Regulation 16 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. In the opinion of your Board Ms. Pawan Kumar
Tiwari fulfills the conditions specified in the Act, the Rules thereunder and the Listing Regulations
for reappointment as Independent Director and he is Independent of the Management of the
Company. Mr. Pawan Kumar Tiwari does not hold any share in the Company in his individual
capacity.

None of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/or their relatives,
except Mr. Pawan Kumar Tiwari, in any way, are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise
in the resolution set out in item No. 5 of the Notice. The Board of Directors of the company
recommends the resolution set out in item No. 5 as Special Resolution for approval of the
members.
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Details of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the Annual General
Meeting as required under Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015:

Name of Director

Subhankar Banerjee

Sangita Agarwal

Pawan Kumar Tiwari

Directors Identification 00137649 01097017 03642702

Number

Date of Birth 31.03.1955 28.01.1977 23.06.1990

Date of First Appointment 04.07.2001 03.05.2024 03.05.2024

Educational Qualification B.Com M.Com B.Com (H) and Company
Secretary

Expertise in specific HR, Admin etc. Financial Sector Financial Sector

functional areas

Chairmanship/Membership N.A N.A. N.A.

of Committees in this

Company

Present status of Director Additional Non-Executive | Additional Non-Executive

directorship in this
Company

Independent Director

Independent Director

Directorship in other Yes, IFB Appliances None None
Public Limited Companies | Ltd, w.e.f. 01.12.2016
as Director

Chairmanship/Membership None None None
of Committees in other
Public Limited Companies
Shareholding as on 31 Nil Nil Nil
March, 2024
Seeking appointment/re- N.A Confirmation of her Confirmation of his
appointment appointment as an appointment as an

Independent Director Independent Director
Rotational Status N.A. N.A. N.A.

By order of the Board

Place: Kolkata

Date: 03.05.2024
Registered Office:
14, Taratolla Road
Kolkata - 700 088

For CPL Industries Limited

Sd/-
Aashika Agarwal

Company Secretary
Membership No.- 36914
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To
The Members

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the 39t Annual Report on the business and operations of your

Company together with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2024.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The financial performance of the Company for the year ended 315t March, 2024 is summarized below:

(Rs. in Hundreds)

Standalone Consolidated

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, March March March

2024 31,2023 31,2024 31,2023

Total Income 2,606 2,200 6,110 4,942
Total Expenditure 2,751 3,076 3,975 3,822
Profit before Finance Costs, Exceptional Item, (145) (876) 2,136 1,120
Tax, Depreciation and Amortization
Less: Finance Costs - - - -
Less: Depreciation & Amortization Expenses - - - -
Profit before Exceptional Item and Tax (145) (876) 2,136 1,120
Exceptional Items - - - -
Profit Before Tax (145) (870) 2,136 1,120
Current Tax - - 574 500
Deferred Tax - - - -
Prior Period Adjustment - - 2 7
Profit After Tax (145) (8706) 1,559 613

(Note: The Company had prepared its financial statements in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) as
prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules thereunder and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India.)

STATE OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

During the financial year ended 315t March, 2024, the Company recorded a total income of Rs. 2,60,600 as
compared to total income of Rs. 2,20,000 in the previous financial year. The Company incurred a loss (net
of tax) of Rs. 1,45,000 in the financial year 2023-24 as against a loss of Rs. 87,620 in the previous financial
year.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

During the financial year ended 31st March 2024, the Company recorded a total income of Rs.
6,11,000 on a consolidated basis as compared to a total income of Rs. 4,94,200 in the previous
financial year. The Company earned a net profit (after tax) of Rs. 1,55,900 on a consolidated
basis in the financial year 2023-24 as against a profit (after tax) of Rs. 61,300 in the previous
financial year.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company is prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015. The Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements along with the Auditors” Report form part of the Annual Report.

Transfer to Reserves

There was no transfer made to any reserve of the Company for the financial year ended 31t
March, 2024.

Dividend

The Board of Directors of your Company has decided not to recommend any Dividend for the
year under review.

Capital Structure

During the year under review, there has been no change in the Capital structure of the
Company.

Directors

In Accordance with Article of Association of the Company and the provision of the Section
152 of the Companies Act, 2013 Mr. Subhankar Banerjee (DIN: 00137649) will retire by rotation
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment.

None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified as per the provisions of Section 164 of
the Companies Act, 2013.

Ms. Sangeeta Agarwal (DIN: 01097017), was appointed as Non-Executive Independent
Director of the company, for a term of two years with effect from 3rdMay, 2024.

Mr. Pawan Kumar Tiwari (DIN: 03642702), was appointed as Non-Executive Independent
Director of the company, for a term of two years with effect from 3rd May, 2024.

In terms of the provisions of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013, none of the Directors of
the Company are disqualified for appointment or for continuation as Director of the
Company.
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Board Meetings

During the period under review, the Board met 5 (Five) times on 16.05.2023, 09.08.2023,
08.11.2023, 10/01/2024 and 03/02/2024. The gap between the two consecutive meetings did
not exceed the limit as stipulated in Section 173 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Members Board meetings held Board Meetings attended
during the year during the year
Ms. Nupur Somani 5 5
Mr RanganDasgupta 5 5
Mr Subhankar Banerjee 5 5

COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD

As on March 31, 2024 the Board had three committees: the Audit Committee, the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee. During the year, all
recommendations made by the committees were approved by the Board.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company was reconstituted w.e.f. 17th May, 2022 and the
membership of the reconstituted committee comprises of Ms. Nupur Somani, Mr Rangan
Dasgupta and Mr. Subhankar Banerjee. During the period under review, 4 (Four) Audit
Committee meetings were held i.e. on 16.05.2023, 09.08.2023, 08.11.2023&03.02.2024.

Pursuant to Section 177(8) of the Companies Act, 2013, it is reported that there has not been
an occasion where Board has not accepted any recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Attendance of the members of the Committee held during the year was as follows:

Members Committee meetings held Committee Meetings
during the year attended during the year
Ms. Nupur Somani 4 4
MrRanganDasgupta 4 4
MrSubhankar Banerjee 4 4

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company was reconstituted w.e.f.
17t May, 2022 and the membership of the reconstituted committee comprises of Ms. Nupur
Somani, Mr Rangan Dasgupta and Mr. Subhankar Banerjee. During the period under review,
1 (one) Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting was held i.e. on 17.05.2023.

Attendance of the members of the Committee held during the year was as follows:

Members Committee meetings held

during the year

Committee Meetings
attended during the year
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1. Ms. Nupur Somani 1 1
2. Mr Rangan Dasgupta 1 1
3. Mr Subhankar Banerjee 1 1

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Company was reconstituted w.e.f. 17th May,
2023 and the membership of the reconstituted committee comprises of Ms. Nupur Somani,
Mr Rangan Dasgupta and Mr. Subhankar Banerjee. During the period under review, 1 (one)
Stakeholders Relationship Committee meeting was held i.e. on 05.02.2024.

Attendance of the members of the Committee held during the year was as follows:

Members Committee meetings held Committee Meetings
during the year attended during the year
1. Ms. Nupur Somani 1 1
2. Mr Rangan Dasgupta 1 1
3. Mr Subhankar Banerjee 1 1

AUDITOR

The Members of the Company at the 38t Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 21st July,
2023 had appointed Messers Arnab Basu & Associates., Chartered Accountants having
registration No0.324382E allotted by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) as
the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of five consecutive years to hold office
from the conclusion of 38t Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the 434 Annual
General meeting.

AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Auditors” Report read together with the Notes on Accounts are self-explanatory and
therefore do not call for any further explanation and comments. There are no qualifications,
reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made by the Auditor.

FRAUD REPORTING

There have been no instances of frauds reported by the Auditor under Section 143(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013 or Rules framed thereunder either to the Company or to the Central
Government.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year the Company has not entered into any contract/arrangement/transaction
with related parties which could be considered material in accordance with the policy of the
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Company on materiality of related party transactions. As such disclosures of related party
transactions in Form AOC-2 under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act. 2013 is not required.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

During the period the Company has not given any loans or provided any Guarantees and
Security covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES

The particulars of Subsidiary / Associate of the Company are provided in “Annexure - A” as
required U/s 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-1.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In terms of Section 134(3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors state that:

a)

in the preparation of the annual accounts for the period ended 31st March,
2024, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with
proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
at the end of the financial year and of the loss of the Company for that period;

the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities;

the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

the Directors had laid down adequate internal financial controls to be
followed by the Company and such internal financial control are operating
effectively; and

the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and
operating effectively.

LOAN FROM DIRECTORS

The Company has not received any loan from its Directors or their relatives during the period

under review.
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS & OUTGO

The provision of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 with regards to disclosures on conservation of energy, technology absorption is
not applicable to the Company.

During the period under review there was no foreign exchange earnings or out flow.
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review as stipulated under
Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, is attached as “Annexure -B”
forming part of the Annual Report.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The Board has appointed Nitesh Sinha & Associates, Company Secretaries to carry out the
Secretarial Audit pursuant to the provision of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
for the Financial Year 2023-24. The Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year ended 31st
March, 2024 annexed as “Annexure - C” and forming part of this report.

ANNUAL EVALUATION BY THE BOARD

In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act,2013 and the SEBI Listing
Regulations, the Board of Directors has carried out an Annual Evaluation of its own
performance and performance of Board Committees, Individual Directors, etc., for the year
under review.

DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits from public within the meaning of Section 73 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 and as
such, no amount on account of principal or interest on deposits from public was outstanding
as on the date of the balance sheet.
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SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS, COURTS
AND TRIBUNALS

No significant and material order has been passed by the regulators, courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and Company’s future operations.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to the Financial
Statements. Such controls have been tested during the year and no reportable material
weaknesses in design or operation was observed. The Internal Financial Control systems and
procedures and their effectiveness are reviewed and monitored on a regular basis.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is not required to prepare Corporate Governance report Pursuant to Regulation
34 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

OTHER DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS

. The disclosures and reporting with respect to issue of equity shares with
differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise is not applicable as the
Company has not issued any such shares during the reporting period.

o The disclosures and reporting on issue of shares (including sweat equity
shares and Issue of Shares under Employees Stock Option Scheme) to
employees of the Company under any scheme are not applicable as the
Company has not issued any such shares during the reporting period.

e  There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial
position of the Company which have occurred between the end of the
financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and
the date of the report.

e There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company.

. The company has complied with the applicable provisions of Secretarial
Standards SS-1 and SS-2 with respect to convening of Board Meetings and
General Meetings during the year.

VIGIL MECHANISM

In pursuant to Section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, and SEBI(LODR) Regulation,
2015 your company has established a Vigil Mechanism for its directors and employees to
report genuine concern or grievances. The said mechanism encompasses the Whistle Blower
Policy and provides for adequate safe guards against victimization of persons who use the
mechanism. It also provides direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in
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appropriate and exceptional cases. The concerned employees and the Directors of the
Company are made aware of the said policy from time to time.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility in terms of Sec 135 of the Companies Act
2013 are not applicable to the Company.

LISTING

The fully paid up Equity Shares of the Company are listed on the Calcutta Stock Exchange
Limited (CSE). However, the Company is in the process of delisting of its share from the said
exchange. The CSE vide its letter dated 18t August, 2022 has accorded its in-principle
approval to the delisting of the shares from the said exchange pursuant to Regulation 12 of
Securities Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations 2021 and the
company expects to complete the process of delisting at the earliest.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

As per the requirement of Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013, your Company has in place a Policy for Prevention of
Sexual Harassment of Women at Work Place and constituted Internal Complaints
Committees. No compliant has been raised during the year ended 31 March, 2024.

INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE

No application has been made under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code; hence the
requirement to disclose the details of application made or any proceeding pending under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the year along with their status as at the end
of the financial year is not applicable.

VALUATION

The requirement to disclose the details of difference between amount of the valuation done at
the time of onetime settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or
Financial institutions along with the reasons thereof is not applicable.

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

The Company adopted a Code of Conduct as per the Guidelines issued by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India as amended from time to time for prevention of Insider Trading
which is applicable to the members of the Board and all employees in the course of day-to-
day business operations of the Company. The code of conduct framed by the Company has
helped in ensuring compliance with the requirements.
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COST RECORDS

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section
148 of Companies Act, 2013 for the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Risk Management is the process of identification, assessment and prioritization of risks
Considering the volume, size and business of the company no major risks have been identified
by the Company.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Director express their sincere thanks and place on record their deep appreciation of the
valuable support the Company has received from Shareholders, Bankers, Government and
from all concerned.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For CPL Industries Limited

Subhankar Banerjee Rangan Dasgupta
Director Director
(DIN: 00137649) (DIN: 00138276)

Place: Kolkata
Date: 03.05.2024

Registered Office:
14, Taratolla Road,
Kolkata - 700088
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Annexure-A

AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014)Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate
companies/joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries
The Company does not have any subsidiaries.

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

1. Serial No. 1
2. Name of AssociateCompany ELISHA INVESTMENTS LIMITED
3. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2024
4. No. of Shares of Associate Company held by the Company 10,99,940
on the year end
5. Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture 16,41,100
6. Extend of Holding% 28.20%
7. Description of how there is significant influence Equity share
8. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated Consolidated
9. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited 20,20,572

Balance Sheet

10. Profit/Loss for the year 1,70,436
i. Considered in Consolidation 48,063
ii. Not Considered in Consolidation 1,22,373

Notes:The Following Information shall be furnished at the end of the statement

1. Names of Subsidiarieswhich are yet to commence operations: N.A

2. Names of Subsidiarieswhich have been liquidated or sold during the year: N.A
By Order of the Board of Directors

For CPL Industries Limited

Subhankar Banerjee Rangan Dasgupta
Director Director
(DIN: 00137649) (DIN: 00138276)

Date: 03.05.2024


mailto:cplindustries19@gmail.com
http://www.cplindustries.org.in/

CPL Industries Limited

CIN: L74210WB1982P1.C035417
Registered Office: 14 Taratolla Road Kolkata 700088, India
Email: cplindustries19@gmail.com, Tel: 033 3984 9417, Website: www.cplindustries.org.in

Annexure -B
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Management Discussion and Analysis Report
for the year ended on March 31st, 2024.

1. FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains forward-looking statements based on certain assumptions and
expectations of future events. The Company, therefore, cannot guarantee that these
assumptions and expectations are accurate or will be realized. The Company's actual results,
performance or achievements can thus differ materially from those projected in any such
forward-looking statements. The Company assumes no responsibility to publicly amend,
modify or revise any forward looking statements, on the basis of any subsequent
developments, information or events.

2. INDUSTRY OPERATIONS, STRUCTURE, DEVELOPMENTS AND FUTURE
OUTLOOK

You are aware that the Company is carrying of business in the field of engineering,
procurement and construction for erection of power plant(s) and other infrastructure
facilities.The outlook is favorable for the current account and it’s financing. A likely surfeit,
rather than scarcity, of foreign capital will complicate exchange rate management. Risks from
a shift in US monetary policy and turmoil in the Euro zone need to be watched but could
remain within control.Reforms have been initiated in a number of areas and major ones are
on the horizon. The macroeconomic response to the favorable terms of trade shock has led to
an appropriately prudent mix of increased government savings and private consumption. The
government has further decided to address 5 key areas: agricultural income under stress,
increasing investment in infrastructure, decline in manufacturing, and resource crunch in
view of higher devolution in taxes to states while maintaining fiscal discipline. With a view
to incentivize investment in infrastructure, the Budget announced by honorable Finance
Minister, Mrs. Nirmala Sitaraman earlier in the year has proposed a number of welcome
measures which would kick-start investment in infrastructure.

RISKS AND CONCERNS

The followings could be listed as the risk factors w.r.t. EPC Contractors i.e. Engineering,
Procurement and Construction (EPC).

Regulatory and legislative changes and increased cost of compliance.
Volatile technology and prices.

Operational hazards including blowouts, spills and personal injury
Natural disasters and extreme weather conditions.

Inaccurate reserve estimates.

Inadequate liquidity or access to capital, indebtedness.
Environmental or health restrictions and regulations.

General national or global economic concerns.

General competition.

VVVVVYVYVYVYY
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Annexure-C
Form No.MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014]

To:

The Members,

CPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
(L'74210WB1982PLC035417)
14, Taratala Road,

Kolkata - 700088,

West Bengal, India

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by ‘CPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
(L74210WB1982PLC035417)’ (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Company’) for the financial year
ended on 31st March, 2024. The secretarial audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my
opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s records including books, papers, registers minute
books, forms and returns filed and other documents maintained by the Company and also the
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the
audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024, and made available
to me, according to the provisions of:

(1)  The Companies Act, 1956 (the old Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
(iv) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
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v)

(vi)

(vii)

CPL Industries Limited

CIN: L74210WB1982P1.C035417
Registered Office: 14 Taratolla Road Kolkata 700088, India
Email: cplindustries19@gmail.com, Tel: 033 3984 9417, Website: www.cplindustries.org.in

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings;

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
1992;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(9) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009; and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

I further report that as informed and certified by the Management, no other laws are

specifically applicable to the Company for the Audit period.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i)

Secretarial Standard-1 and Secretarial Standard-2 issued by The Institute of Company
Secretaries of India. (Applicable to the Company during the audit period as it has come into
force on 01st day of July, 2015).

| further report that:

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.
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The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted, with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of
the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board and Committee Meetings; agenda
and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting
and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

During the audit period under review all decisions at Board and Committee Meeting were carried
out unanimously

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period the Company has no specific events/ actions having
major bearing the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations,

guidelines, standards etc. referred to above.

For NITESH SINHA & ASSOCIATES
Practicing Company Secretary

Sd/-

CS NITESH SINHA FRN: S2014wWB247700
Proprietor Place: Kolkata
Membership No. 12556(F) Date: 03 May, 2024
Certificate of Practice No.25987 UDIN: FO012556F000507270

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “4VNEXURE-A” and
forms an integral part if this report.
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“ANNEXURE-A”

To:

The Members,

CPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
(L'74210WB1982PLC035417)
14, Taratala Road,

Kolkata - 700088,

West Bengal, India

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter —

1. Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on
our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The
verification was done on the test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial
records. We believe that the processes and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of
accounts of the Company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and happenings of events etc.

5. The compliance of provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the
verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

For NITESH SINHA & ASSOCIATES
Practicing Company Secretary

Sd/-

CS NITESH SINHA FRN: S2014WB247700
Proprietor Place: Kolkata
Membership No. 12556(F) Date: 03 May, 2024

Certificate of Practice No.25987 UDIN: F012556F000507270
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule-V, Para-C, Clause (10)(i) of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)]

To:

The Members,

CPL INDUSTRIES LTD.
14, Taratolla Road,
Kolkata-700088,

West Bengal

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the
Directors of ‘CPL INDUSTRIES LTD. (CIN: L74210WB1982PLC035417)’, having its registered
office at 14, Taratolla Road, Kolkata-700088, West Bengal, India (hereinafter referred to as ‘the
Company’), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in
accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule-V, Para-C, Clause 10(i) of the Securities

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications [including

Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal of ministry of Corporate Affairs viz.

www.mca.gov.in] as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company and its
officials, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below
for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 have been debarred or disqualified from being
appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India,

Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.

Sl. No. Name of Director DIN Date of
Appointment in
Company
1. Rangan Das Gupta (Director) 00138276 31/01/2020
Nupur Somani (Independent Director) 09604391 17/05/2022
4. Subhankar Banerjee (Director) 00137649 04/07/2001
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Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment/ continuity of every Director on the Board is the
responsibility of the Management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted

the affairs of the Company.

For NITESH SINHA & ASSOCIATES
Practicing Company Secretary

Sd/-

CS NITESH SINHA

Proprietor

Membership No. 12556(F)

Date: 3rd May, 2024 Certificate of Practice No.25987
Place: Kolkata [ICSI UDIN: F012556F001133874]
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srwal Basu & rbssociates

Chartered Accountants 286, PRINCE ANWAR SHAH ROAD, KOLKATA - 700 045, PH. : 9830054156

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of
CPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of CPL INDUSTRIES
LIMITED(‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income) and the statement of changes in Equity and
the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of material accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its
profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We have conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report
including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and
Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the consolidated financial statements, the standalone
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materj 'lyulnc,‘onmstent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the cou of our aQﬂi( or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have perft 1
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that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charges with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The Board of
Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a/gomg cdgt;?qT% If
we conclude that a materlal uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attentlon in our/a’ ditor’s epo
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modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the Standalone Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work;
and (i1) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal financial control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account;

(d) in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2024 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements of the Company and the operating effectlveness of such controls, refer to our separate report




(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions
of section 197 of the Act

(h) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

1.

1v.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements, if any.

The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts.

Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of
account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
is applicable to the Company with effect from April 1, 2023, and the same has been operated
throughout the year for all transactions recorded in the software.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1,
2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable
for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B,
a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order.

For Arnab Basu & Associates
Chartered Accountants

FRN\324382E

Arnab Basu
Proprietor
Membership No. 059349

UDIN: 24059349BKAGDT2636

Kolkata, 3" May,2024



ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in Paragraph 2 under the heading of "report on other legal and regulatory requirements" of
our report of even date)

(1) The company has investments in body corporate and it has maintained records of such
investments in the Register under Section 186(9) of the Companies Act,2013.

(i) According to information and explanations given to us in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed dues,
applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of statutory dues in arrears
as at 31" March,2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(iii) The Company has not raised any money through public issues during the year.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and
investments made.

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company is in
compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable, for all
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been
disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

(vi) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company and no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year.

(vii) M/s Dattson & Co., Chartered Accountants, have resigned as statutory auditors of the company
during the relevant financial year. The outgoingt auditors of the company did not express any
significant issues, objections or concerns at the time of such resignation.

(viii) All other clauses of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order 2020 are not applicable.

For Arnab Basu & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN 324382E

-

Arnab Basu

Proprietor

Membership No. 059349
UDIN: 24059349BKAGDT2636

Kolkata, 3™ May,2024



Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of SHUBH ENGINEERING
LIMITED(“the Company™) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my /our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to Standalone Financial Statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the Foan S AN
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable aéé"’rance tﬁat\
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accor 3

generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company




made only in accordance with authorisations of the management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to
Financial Statements and such internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the criteria for internal financial control with
reference to Financial Statements established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the ICAL

For Arnab Basu & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN 324382E

Arnab Basu

Proprietor

Membership No. 059349
UDIN: 24059349BKAGDT2636
Kolkata, 3" May,2024




CPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024
) Rupees in Hundred, unless otherwise stated
As at Asat
Note 31st March 2024 31st March 2023

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Capital work-in-progress

Financial assets
(@) Investments 2 21,65,915 20,51,398
(i1) Loans

Other non-current assets - =

Total non-current assets 21,65,915 20,51,398

Current assets

Inventories

Financial assets
@) Investments

() Cash and cash equivalents 3 191 346

(i) Bank balances other than (i) above - -

(iv) Loans -
Other current assets 4 170 160
‘Total current assets 361 506

TOTAL ASSETS 21,66,276 20,51,904

Equity and liabilities

Equity

Equity share capital 5 24,605 24,605
Other equity 6 14,08,139 12,67,897
Total equity 14,32,744 12,92,502

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings

Provisions

Deferred tax liabilities (net) 7 7,33,442 7,59,313
Other non-current liabilities -
Total non-current liabilities 7,33,442 7,59,313

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities
(®) Trade payables - -
(i) Other financial liabilities 8 89 89

Other current liabilities
Provisions 9
Total current liabilities 89 89

‘Total liabilities 7,33,531 7,59,402

Total equity and liabilities 21,66,276 20,51,904

The acc ying notes 1 to 18 form an integral part of these standalone financial statements.

This is the standalone Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Amab Basu & Associates. For and on behalf of the
Chartered Accountants Board of Director of
Firm Registration No. 324382E CPL Industries Limited

ch\ bmﬁui’w

ab Basu Subhankar Ban! Rangan Dasgupta
Propreitor Director Director
Membership No. 059349 DIN: 00137649 . DIN 00138276
Place: Kolkata
Date: 03.05.2024
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CPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2024

() Rupees in Hundred, unless otherwise stated

Income

Revenue from service
Other Income

Total income

Expenses

Other expenses
Total expenses
Profit before tax
Tax expenses
Current tax

Deferred tax

Prior Period Adjustment

Profit after tax

Other comprehensive income:

(a) Items that will not be reclassified subseq ly to profit or loss:

(i) Changes in fair value of equity instruments

(ii) Tax relating to this item

‘Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per equity share
Basic and diluted earnings per share

The accompanying notes 1 to 18 form an integral part of these standalone financial statements.

Year ended Year ended
Notes 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
10 2,600 2,200
10 6
2,606 2,200
11 2,751 3,076
2,751 3,076
(145) (876)
12 -
(145) (876)
1,14,516 (2,56,658)
(25.871) (30,370)
1,40,387 {2,26,288)
1,40,242 (2,27,164)
13

This is the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Amab Basu & Associates.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 324382E

Propreitor |'
Membership No. 059349
\

Place: Kolkata
Date: 03.05.2024

For and on bebalf of the
Board of Director of CPL Industries Limited

Subhankar Bancrjfe Rangan [Dusgupta
Director Director
DIN: 00137649 DIN 00138276
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CPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March 2024

() Rupees in Hundred, unless otherwise stated

A. Cash flow from operating activities:
Profit before tax
Prior Period Adjustment

Operating profit before working capital changes:

Adjustment for:

(Increase) / decrease in other non-financial assets
(Decrease) Increase in trade payables

Increase / (decrease) in provisions

(Dectease) in other financial liabilities
Increase in other non-financial liabilities
Cash generated from operations

Income taxes paid (net of refund)
Net cash generated from operating activities

B. Cash flow from investing activities

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities

C. Cash flow from financing activities

Net cash (used in) financing activities

Net increase /(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year

Notes:

@

®)

©

(A+B+C)

Year ended Year ended
31st March 2024 31st March 2023

(145) (876)

(145) (876)
(10) (160)
(155) (1,036)

(155) (1,036)
(155) (1,036)

346 1,382

191 346

D) The above Standalone Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in Ind AS 7, "Statement of Cash Flows".

ii) Reconciliation between the ppening and closing balances in the Balance Sheet for liabilities arising from financial activities are as under:

Particula Balance as on Balance as on
B 31st March 2024 | 31st March 2023
Long term borrowings: - -
Total liabilities from fi ing activities - -
As at As at
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
iii) Cash and cash equivalents comprises of:
Cash on hand 5 5
Balances with banks
- In current accounts 186 341
Bank deposits - =
191 346
The accompanying notes 1 to 18 form an integral part of these standalone financial statements.
This is the standalone Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
For Arnab Basu & Associates. For and on behalf of the

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 324382E

Arnalf Basu
Propreitor
Membership No. 059349
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Place: Kolkata
Date: 03.05.2024

™~ * AN

s

Board offirector of CPL Industries Limited

Subhankar Banesjee gan ptn

Director o
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CPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(%) Rupees in Hundred, unless otherwise stated

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

a. Background

CPL Industries Limited ("the Company") is a Public Limited Company incorporated under the Companies Act,
1956 & having its registered office in Kolkata, India. The Company is engaged in the business ofOther support
services to organizations. The CIN of the Company is L74210WB1982PLC035417.

b. Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind ASs)

notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. These financial statements have also been prepared in
accordance with the relevant presentation requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company adopted Ind AS
from 01 April 2018.

Up to the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with the
requirements of previous Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), which includes Standards notified under
the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. These are the Company's first Ind AS financial statements. The
date of transition to Ind AS is 01 April 2017. Details of the exceptions and optional exemptions availed by the
Company and principal adjustments along with related reconciliations are detailed in page no.25 - First-time
Adoption of Ind AS.

c. Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention, except for certain

items that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly

transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for leasing
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 17 - Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 - Inventories or value in use in Ind AS 36 -
Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3

based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

* Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Company can access at the measurement date;

* Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period; they are recognised
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per Company's normal operating

cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule Il to the Companies Act 2013 and Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial
Statements based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents.

d. Revenue recognition
Revenue from services is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for services
rendered in the periods in which the services are rendered on a prorated basis over the period or as per the terms
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of the contract.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive dividend has been
established.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to

the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

e. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation

and impairment, if any. For this purpose, cost includes deemed cost which represents the carrying value of property,
plant and equipment recognised as at 01 April 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP.

Cost is inclusive of inward freight, duties and taxes and incidental expenses related to acquisition. In respect

of major projects involving construction, related pre-operational expenses form part of the value of assets
capitalised. Expenses capitalised also include applicable borrowing costs for qualifying assets, if any. All upgradation
/ enhancements are charged off as revenue expenditure unless they bring similar significant additional benefits.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment has been provided on the straight-line method as per the useful
life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of profit and Loss.

f. Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,

the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
the statement of profit and loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU) is increased to

the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or CGU) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss.

g. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash-on-hand, current account bank balances and demand deposits
with banks, having original maturity less than three months.

h. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

{9}
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All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

i. Employee benefits
There are only one employee on the rolls of the Company.

j. Taxation

Tax expenses comprises current and deferred tax.

Current tax

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to tax authorities in accordance with the Income Tax
Act, 1961. The Company's current tax is calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted during the
period, together with any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. Current tax assets and tax
liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Income tax, in so far as it relates to items disclosed under other comprehensive income or equity, are
disclosed separately under other comprehensive income or equity, as applicable.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances related to the same taxation authority.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit entitlement is recognised only to the extent there is convincing evidence

that the Company will pay normal tax during the period specified by the income Tax Act, 1961. In the year in which
the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset, the said asset is created by way of credit to the
statement of profit and loss. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the
carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the
Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

k. Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Company recognises a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of an obligating event that
probably requires outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When
some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of
the receivable can be measured reliably. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of
money is material).

A disclosure of a cantingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that

may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible

obligation or a present obligation and the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure
of contingent liability is made.

|. Operating segments
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker (CODM). The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors.




Segments are organised based on business which have similar economic characteristics as well as exhibit
similarities in nature of products and services offered, the nature of production processes, the type and class of
customer and distribution methods.

Segment revenue arising from third party customers is reported on the same basis as revenue in the financial
statements. Inter-segment revenue is reported on the basis of transactions which are primarily market led. Segment
results represent profits before finance charges, unallocated expenses and taxes.

"Unallocated Expenses" represents revenue and expenses attributable to the enterprise as a whale and are not
attributable to segments.

m. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability

or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are

initially measured at fair value.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities {other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through statement of profit and loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit and loss are recognised immediately in profit and loss.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is included in the balance sheet where thereis a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

n. Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair
value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Recognition
Financial assets include investments, trade receivables, derivative instruments, cash and cash equivalents,

other bank balances, loans and other financial assets. Such assets are initially recognised at transaction price
when the Company becomes party to contractual obligations. The transaction price includes transaction costs
unless the asset is being fair valued through the statement of profit and loss.

Classification
Management determines the classification of an asset at initial recognition depending on the purpose for
which the assets were acquired. The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on such classification.

Financial assets are classified as those measured at:

(a) Amortised cost, where the financial assets are held solely for collection of cash flows arising from

payments of principal and / or interest.

(b) Fair value through other comprehensive income, where the financial assets are held not only for collection

of cash flows arising from payments of principal and interest but also from the sale of such assets. Such assets are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value being
recognised in other comprehensive income.

(c) Fair value through statement of profit and loss, where the assets are managed in accordance with an
approved investment strategy that triggers purchase and sale decisions based on their fair value of such assets.
Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the
fair value being recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they arise.

Trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, loans and other financial assets are classified for measurement

at amortised cost. Investments may fall under any of the aforesaid classes. However, in respect of particular
investments in equity instruments that would otherwise be measured at fair value through profit and loss, an
irrevocable election at initial recognition have been made to present subsequent changes in fair value through other

comprehensive income.
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Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest
method. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of an instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Impairment
At each reporting date a financial asset such as investment, trade receivable, loans and other financial assets

held at amortised cost and financial assets that are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
are tested for impairment based on evidence or information that is available without undue cost or effort. Expected
credit loss is assessed and loss allowance is recognised if the credit quality of that financial asset has deteriorated
significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount

of the assets. For debt securities at fair value through other comprehensive income, the loss allowance is
recognised in other comprehensive income and is not reduced from the carrying amount of the financial asset in the
balance sheet.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there

is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the trade
receivable does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Company's recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made
are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Reclassification

When and only when the business model is changed the Company shall reclassify all affected financial assets
prospectively from the reclassification date as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income, fair value through statement of profit and loss without restating the previously recognised
gains, losses or interest and in terms of the reclassification principles laid down in the Ind AS relating to Financial
instruments.

De-recognition
Financial assets are derecognised when the right to receive cash flows from the assets has expired, or has been

transferred, and the Company has transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership. Consequently,
if the asset is one that is measured at

(a) Amortised cost, the gain or loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

(b) Fair value through other comprehensive income, the cumulative fair value adjustments previously taken to
reserves are reclassified to the statement of profit and loss unless the asset represents an equity investment in
which case the cumulative fair value adjustments previously taken to reserves is reclassified within equity.

o. Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification:

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting

all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a company are recognised at the proceeds received.

Financial liabilities

Borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities are initially recognised at the value of the respective
contractual obligations. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any discount or premium on
redemption / settlement is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as finance cost over the life of the liability ;
using the effective interest method and adjusted to the liability figure disclosed in the balance sheet. 7 $STRIEG :

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability is extinguished, that is, when the contractual obligation
is discharged, cancelled and on expiry.
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Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit and loss for the year attributable to shareholders

by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. For the purpese of calculating diluted
earnings per share, the profit and loss for the year attributable to shareholders and weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential shares

1A. USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during the
reporting period end. Although these estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of current events and
actions, actual results could differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

In particular, information about the significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements in
applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements are related to:

(i) Useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
(ii) Fair value of financial assets / liabilities
(iii) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
As described in the significant accounting policies, the Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property,

plant and equipment and intangible assets at the end of each reporting period. The Company is required to
determine whether its intangible assets have indefinite or finite life which is a subject matter of judgement.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Company engages third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation, if required.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Company has ongoing litigations with various regulatory authorities and third parties. Where an outflow

of funds is believed to be probable and a reliable estimate of the outcome of the dispute can be made based on
management's assessment of specific circumstances of each dispute and relevant external advice, management
provides for its best estimate of the liability. Such accruals are by nature complex and can take number of years to
resolve and can involve estimation uncertainty.

1B. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS:

Ind AS 21 - The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

On 28 March 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting

Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B to Ind AS 21 - The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates which clarifies the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income, when an entity has received or paid advance consideration in a
foreign currency. This amendment will come into force from 01 April 2018. The Company has evaluated the effect of
this on the financial statements and the impact is not material.

Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contract with Customers

On 28 March 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified the Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contract

with Customers. The core principle of the new standard is that an entity should recognise revenue to depict the
transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Further the new standard requires enhanced
disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity's
contracts with customers. The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 115 is financial periods beginning on or after 01 /'/.f"‘i'RIE
April 2018. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 115 on the financial statements is expected to be insignificant. Pu» .

. -
s/ \4-7?\ .
N
1O

4

okcait‘ull 48 ) .'

* ¥
A

%

\f‘;ﬂln ! _1-8 ’\j‘

v




parEmuwnade o s193suen Luedwor) oy -, [DO YSnonp siuouwmmnsuy Amby,, pray oy 39pun Amby I3 UF PaIPMWINIIE I8 SINJEA Ije] G $35ULYD ‘TVOREUSISIP PIEsaIofe Sy} UO Pastg
‘porrad Yons 30§ SSOT PUE JFOFJ JO JUIWIIEI§ SUOTEPUEIS oY) U A[1erpatusy sonfea 1rej ur saSueyd oy Suposages veqy sjusumsaany wia-3uo] 305 wopeiuasazd
woneIuasard [ySUIEaw 930W € SOP1A0Fd ST 18T SOASYR] IUSWRSEUEW I SE JWOU] 2AISTYrdwoy) FOMQ) YInoIm anfea ey Je s)uawnnsoy Anba se sjuounsaans asap
s1eudissp 03 Basotp sey Luedwon) oml ‘601 SV PO Fopur) Surpen oy ppay 10U pue sasodmd o13a1ens wIa}-3uof 105 axe syuswnnsur &mbs m syusumsaany ST, (M
"€Z07°SO'TE TO Papu= 7eak 31 105 AYN UO Uaxel udsq daey saxeys ymba pajonbun ur sy0ounsaAns o anfea oq, (1
-parredmy 023q daey sjuswNNsH Amb2 U JUSWISSAT 973 JO SUOU ‘e 193Y§ 93Te[eq 3G e Y (1

86£T5°07 $16°S9°TC
759361 SLE%9¢ T
9bL15°C 6£562°01
€207 YOIe ISTE $20T YoOSeIAl IST¢
1E Sy 1e sy

1SION

pue ‘siuawisaats pajonbun jo jonowe a1e32138y (q)
JO2797) SN[PA JINIEW PUE SHTIWISIAT pajonb Jo junowe 53edsxddy (v)
15)UIUNSIAUL JUSIIND-UOYW JOJ SAINSOPSIP YO

SIUIUWGSIATL JUININD-TWOU [0 T,

(dn-pred £y “areys 30d (1 3 anfea 3de)
v svoueddy 4] (ar

(dn-pred £y “areqs sod o1 3 anfea adey)
P¥1 SIU9WISIAT] BUSHH (I

(dn-pred 47y ‘sxeys 3ad o1 3 onfea 3de,)
P¥T 18 saseqy mdmN (i

(dn-pred £y ‘oreqs 3ad o1 ) anfea deq)

poyrwr s19lo3g TdD

(swoou] sarsuayasdwon) 1) ySnonp aneA 7eq e parendisoy)
paonbun

(dn-pred 4qny ‘oreys 3od o1 3 anpea 2¢,)
POUDYT SIESOPU] AT

(swoou] aarsuayardwo)) PYI() YInonp nfe A I7e] I parendsa()
paond)
symwnnsut Amba ur s)uaunssany

SIUIUMSAIAR] ¢

86£°TS 0T $16'99'1C
799°66°VT SLE9ETY
18¢°T 001 LELT 00t
L1+°91 0¥6°66°01 L6L9T 0+6°66°01
LTEor 00066 L0g9L°01 00056
€SIy 00008 £es 1y 00008
LIS S 6£5°62°0T
9L 1SS c18%L 6€562°01 €18 L
€20t S ¥20C —_———
TPOTEIA ASTE PIPUR FeI SR TYOIEIX ISTE PIPUD JEI{ i gl

PI3EIS ISIMIIO ST ‘parpony uy saadny (3)

$20¢ GOIBIN ISIC POPUS 334 1) J0J SITIWIAN LS [EIOURUY JUOJEPUELS 0) SAON]

THLINIT SHIYISNANI 1dD



CPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

®) Rupees in Hundred, unless otherwise stated

As at As at
3st March 2024 31st March 2023
3 Cash and bank balances
(a) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 5 5
Balances with banks
- In current accounts 186 341
191 346
(b) Other bank balances
4 Other assets
(a) Non-current
(b) Current
(Unsecured, considered good)
Balances with government authorities (**) TDS 170 160
170 160

Balances with government authorities primarily include amounts realisable from Income T'ax authorities. These are expected to be realised within a
g p y Xp
(**) petiod of one-year. Accordingly these balances have been classified as current assets.
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CPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

®

Rupees in Hundred, unlcss otherwise stated

. As at Asat

3lst March 2024 31sr March 2023

7 Deferred 1ax liabilities, net

Deferrcd tax liability:

Fair valuation on equily instruments through OCI TA5442 759313

Taotal deferred tax liabilities 733842 759,513

Deferred tax assets

Total deferred tax asseta

Deferred wax Liabilities, net 733,442 7,359,313

o

©

i) Movement in defermed tax liabillties for year ended 3ar March 2015:

Asat . Asat
Pasticulars 01 April 2018 Comprehensive 5, yfarch 2019
Income
Deferred tax liabilities for taxable temporary differences on:
of accounts and [ncome Tax Act, 1961
Pair valuation on equity instruments through OCI 3,45,91,6%8 (13,39,642) 3,32,52,056
‘Total 3,45,91,698 (13,39,642) 3,32,52,056
‘Total s - =
Deferred tax liabilities, net SEEIE 252,056
i) Movement in defermed rax liabilities for year ended 3iae March 2020:
— Other
Particulars Aaat Starement of Profit c o Aaar
01 Aprif 2019 or Loss Inedme 3t March 2020
Defermed tax liabilities for taxable (emporary differences on:
Difference between written down value of property, plant end equipments as per books
Fair valuation on cquity instruments through OCI 3,32,52,056 (1,34,01,552) 1,98,50,504
Total 33252,056 - 4,01,55: 1
i) Movement in defemed tax liabilities for year ended 31t March 2021:
Axat Sistementof Broft O : As
RMrdeey 01 April 2020 ot Loss (“’":::“::r'“h' 3tat March 2021
Diefemed tax liabilitics for taxable temporary differences on:
Diffetence between written down value of property, plant and equipments as per books
Fair valuation on equity instruments through OCI 1,98,50,504 1,99,73,426 398,23,930
‘Total IM&N - l.W"Jﬁ 3.93;“#:!0
Other
Asat Statement of Profit b Asat
Particulars 01 April 2021 or Loss Comprehensive 1 nrarch 2022
Income
Deferred tax liabilities for taxable temporary differences on:
Difference between wiitten down value of property, plant and equipments as per books
of accounts and Income Tax Act, 1961
Fair valuation on equity instruments through OCI 398239 391,444 7,680,683
Total 3.98.239 - 391444 7,89,683
Defemred tax llabilities, net (cont'd) Asat Asat Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 1 April 2018
Total - - -
i) Movement in deferred tax liabilities for year ended 31 March 2023
Qiher
Asat Statement of Profiy Asm
Pasticulars Comprehensive
01 April 2022 or Loss 1 Hnt March 2023
Deferred tax for taxable porary diff on:
Difference between written down value of property, plant and equipments as per books
Fair valuation on equity instruments through OCL 7,689,683 (30,370) 759,313
Total 7,59.683 = 759,313

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset wherever the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax ligbilities and wherc the deferred tax sssets and deferced tax liabilities relate to

income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.

i) Movement in defered tax labilities for year ended 31at March 2024:

Particulars Asar Seatement of Profit Other Asat

ol 12023 or Loss Comprehensive Slst March 2024
Deferred tax liabillties for taxable Yy on:
Difference between written down value of property, plant and equipments as per baoks
Fair valuation on equity instruments through OCI 759,313 (25.871) 733,442
Total 759313 - 25,871) 733,442

Deferved tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset wherever the Company has a legally enforceable cight to set off current tax assels against current tax liabilitics and where the deferred tax assets and deferred rax Liabilities relate to

income taxes levied by the same tazation guthority.

Other Financial Liabilities

Others

Provisions

Provision for Taxation

Asat Asa
31et March 2024 31st March 2023
L) 89 Q,
I
89 89 . 0




CPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024
(@) Rupees in Hundred, unless otherwise stated

10

n

(@

Other Income

Interest Income

Service Renderd

Other expenses

E-voting Setvice Charges-NSDL
Postage

Bank Charges

Filling Fees

Demat Charges

General Expenses

Annual Custody Fees(NSDL)
Professional Fees

Professional Tax

Auditot's remuneration (tefer note (a) below)

Listing Fees

RTA Charges

LLR Fees

Secreterial Audit Fees

Salary (Staff)
Auditot's remuneration

Statutory Audit Fees
Other Audit Fees

Year ended Year ended
31st March 31st Match
2024 2023

6 =
2,600 2,200
2,606 2,200

118
29

7 3
42 131

12 -
21 59
106 106
26
25 25
89 89
472 578
59 59
71
100
1,800 1,800
2,751 3,076
89 89
89 89




CPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Notes to dal fi I

(?)- Rupees in Hundred, unless otherwise stated

12
(@)

®

i)

i)

19

s for the year ended 31st March 2024

Year ended Year ended
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Tax expense
Income tax in the statement of profit and loss:
Current tax
Deferred tax .
Prior Period Adjustment - -
Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income comprises:
Deferred tax on fair value gains on investments in equity instruments through OCI -25,871 -30,370
-25,871 -30,370
13 Eamnings per equity share (EPS)
Net Profit before Dividend
Net profit attributable to equity shareholders (145) (876)
Number of equity shares outstanding during the year 246,050 2,46,050
Face value per share 10 10
Earnings per shate
- Basic earnings per equity shate (0.00) (0.00)
- Diluted earnings per equity share (0.00) (0.00)
14 Related party disclosures
Information on related party transactions as required by Ind AS - 24 - Related Party Disclosues for the year ended 31 March 2024
List of related Party
Associates
Name of the Company Percentage of holding ~ Percentage of holding
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Elisha Investments Limited 28.20% 28.20%
Key Management Personnel
Name of the person Designation Designation
Subhankar Banerjee Director Director
Rangan Dasgupta Director Director
Nupur Somani Director Director
Transactions with related parties
Particulars 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
No related party transactions are there. _
18 Finacial Ratios
Year ended Year cnded
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Current Ratio (no. of times) 4.08 5.71
Debt-Equity (no. of times) 0.51 0.59
DSCR (no. of times) NA NA
Retumn on Equity (%) 0.00 0.00
[nventory Tumover Ratio NA NA
Tr. Recv, Turnover Ratio(no.of days) NA NA
Tr. Paybl. Tumover Ratio (no.of days) NA NA
Net Capital Tumover Ratio 0.001 0.001
NetProfit Ratio (%) -0.06 -0.40
Return on Capital Employed (%) 0.00 0.00
Return on In t (%) 0,00 0.00
Relationship with Struck off C
Nature of transactions | MNature of transactions
e ey with struck-off Company|with struck-off Company
Name of struck off Company Investments in secunities | Investments in secunties
Receivables Receivables
Payables Payables
NONE Shares held by stuck off  [Shares held by stuck off
company company
Other cutstanding Ohthee outstanding
balances (to be specified) [balances (to be specificd)
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CPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to dal fi ial

for the year ended 31st March 2024

(%) Rupees in Hundred, unless otherwise stated

18 Additional Regulatory Information

Additional Regulatory Information pursuant to Clause 6L of General Instructions for preparation of Balance Sheet as given in Part | of Division Il of Schedule lll to the Companies Act,

2013, are given hereunder to the extent relevant and other than those given elsewhere in any other notes to the Financial Statements.

a Ratio
Particufars Reason for
Formula 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 % Variance |variance
Very Poor Performance
! — due to downward
Current Ratio Current assets/ Current liabilities 4.08 5.71 -29 Market condition after
COoviD
Very Poor Performance
. . ’ due to downward
Debt Equity Ratio Total debt/ Shareholder's Equity 0.51 0.59 -13 Market condition after
COVID
Debt Service Coverage Ratio Earmings available for debt servic 0.00 0.00 0
[Net Profits after taxes — Very Poor Performance
Return on Equity Ratio Preference Dividend (if any)] 0.00 0.00 -83 due to downward
/Avg. Shareholders Equity Market condition after
COVID
Inventory Turnover Ratio Sales/ Average Inventory 0.00 0.00
Trade Receivables Turnover
Ratio Net Credit Sales/ Average Accoui] g0 0.00 0
Trade Payables Turnover Ratio |Net Credit Purchases/ Average Til 0.00 0.00 o}
Net Capital Turnover Ratio Net Sales/ Working Capital 0.00 0.00 12 sibolinEeaselin
revenue
Very Poor Performance
Net Profit Ratio % Net Profit/ Net Sales -0.06 -0.40 -86 due to downward
Market condition after
CovID
Very Poor Performance
Return on Capital employed Earning before interest and taxes 0.00 0.00 -84 due to downward
(EBIT) Market condition after
{ Capital Employed COVID
investment Income generated
from invested
Retumn on Investment funds/Average invested funds in 0:00 0.00 0
treasury investments

b The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.
¢ The Company does not have enjoyed any Working Capital limit from the Banks of from Financial institutions.

d The Company has not been declared as a willful defaulter by any lender who has powers to declare a company as a willful defaulter at any time during the
financial year or after the end of reporting period but before the date when the financial statements are approved.

e The Company does not have any transactions with struck-off companies.
f The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies (ROC) beyond the stipulated time limit.

g The Company has compiled with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Companies (Restrictions on
number of Layers) Rules,2017.

h The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(is), including foreign entities(intermediaries), with the understanding
that the intermediary shall;

i. Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries),
or
ii. Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behaif of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

i The Company has not received any funds from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded
in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall;

i. Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate beneficiaries),
or
ii. Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

j The Company does not have any transactions which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during
the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

k The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

| Previous year's figures have been re-grouped, re-worked and re-arranged wherever considered necessary.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of
CPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Report on the Consolidated Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of CPL INDUSTRIES
LIMITED(‘the Company’), which comprise the Consolidated Balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated
Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the Consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2024, the profit and
total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We have conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAT’s Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors, is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors and Management is responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate
Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other 1nf0rmat10n and, 1n domg so, consider whether the other 1nformat10n 15 mater:a]ly 1n90n _tstent




of the other auditor as furnished to us, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the
Group are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of

not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also

responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accountmg

estimates and related disclosures made by management. =

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accourmng and,\\

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related tg gvents d

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a gomg coyicet!




we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modity our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a going concern,

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement
of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account;

(d) in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2024 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(D with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure
A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company’s internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements;

requ1rements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,




In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions
of section 197 of the Act

(h) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

1. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group, if any.

i. Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements, as required under the
applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on longterm
contracts.

1. Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(¢), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

iv. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of

account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
1s applicable to the Company with effect from April 1, 2023, and the same has been operated
throughout the year for all transactions recorded in the software.
As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1,
2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable
for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

2. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”/ “CARQ”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section
143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s report, according to the information and
explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us for the Company, to which
reporting under CARO is applicable, we report that the auditors of associate companies have made no
qualifications or adverse remarks in their respective CARO reports.

For Arnab Basu & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN 324382E

Arna ast;

Proprietor

Membership No. 059349
UDIN: 24059349BKAGDU9812

Kolkata, 3" May,2024



Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of CPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED(“‘the
Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my /our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements .

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable’ detail
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)

reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of: f;
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that rec\el

\:\:




expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of the
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could
have a material cffect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to
Financial Statements and such internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the criteria for internal financial control with
reference to Financial Statements established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the ICAL

For Arnab Basu & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN 324382E

.

-

Arnab Basu
Proprietor
Membership No. 059349

UDIN: 24059349BKAGDU9812

Kolkata, 3™ May,2024



PL INl)US"I‘RIES LIMITED

Consplidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024
(% Rupees in Hundreed, unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS
Non-current asscts
Intangible Asset
Goodwill
Financial assets

(i) Investments

(i) Loans

Orther non-current assets
‘Total non-current assets

Current asscts
Inventories
Iinancial assets
(i) lnvestments
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Bank balances other than (i) above
(iv) Trade Receivables

Other current assets
Total current asscts

TOTAL ASSETS

Equity and liabilities

Equity

Fquity share capital

Other equity

Interest of Holding Company & Others
Total equity

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilitics

(1) Borrowings

Provisions
Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Other non-current liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilitics

(i) Trade payables

(ii) Other financial liabilitics
Other current liabilities
Provisions

Total current liabilities
Total liabilitics

"T'otal equity and liabilitics

AS AT
NOTES 31ST MARCH 2024

AS AT
31ST MARCH 2023

AS AT
31ST MARCH 2022

43,090 43,090 43,090

2 22,47,006 20,36,149 22,92,639
22,90,096 20,79,239 23,35,729

3a 14 14 14
3a 60,842 54,993 50,807
3b 10,000 14,000 18,000
4 819 1,034 959
71,675 70,041 69,781

23,61,771 21,49,281 24,05,510

5 24,605 24,605 24,605
6 15,54,533 13,27,305 15,53,286
42,924 41,804 41,364

16,22,062 13,93,714 16,19,255

7 7,38,058 7,54,890 7,85,225
7,38,958 7,54,890 7,85,225

8 178 178 177
9 574 500 853
752 678 1,030

7,39,710 7,55,567 7,86,254

23,61,772 21,49,281 24,05,510

The accompanying notes 1 to 18 form an integral part of these Consolidated financial statements.

This is the Consolidated Balance Shect referred to in our report of even date.

For Arnab Basu & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regigtration number: 324382E

—"'—‘f

Arna
Propreitor /
Membership No. - 059349 |ﬁ

Place: Kolkata
Date:  03.05.2024

Director

DIN: 0013764 :\AO“STR'E& :
-

Subhankar Bancrjee
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FFor and on behalf of the Board of
Dircctor of CPL Industries Limited
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Director
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CPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2024
(¥ Rupecs in Hundreed, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended Year ended
Notes 31st March 2024 31st March 2023  31st March 2022

Income
Revenue from service - . -
Other Income 10 6,110 4,942 2,376
Total income 6,110 4,942 2,376
Expenses
Other expenses 11 3,975 3,822 4,053
Total expenses 3,975 3,822, 4,053
Profit before tax 2,136 1,120 (1,676)

Tax expenses
Current tax 12 574 500 390

Deferred tax

Prior Period Adjustment 2 7 .
576 507 390

Profit after tax 1,559 613 (2,066)

Less: Interest of Holding Company & Others 1,120 440 (1,484)
440 173 (583)

Other comprehensive income:
(2) Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

(i) Changes in fair value ol equity instruments 2,10,857 (2,56,490) 8,92,118
(ii) Tax relating to this item (15,931) (30,335) 3,89,173
Total other comprehensive income for the year, nct of tax 2,26,788 (2,26,155) 5,02,944
Less: Interest of Holding Company & Others 1,62,834 (1,62,379) 3,61,114
63,954 (63,776) 1,41,830

Earnings per equity share
Basic and diluted eatnings per share 0.01 0.00 0.01)

The accompanying notes 1 to 18 form an integral part of these Consolidated financial statements.

This is the Consolidated Balance Shect referred to in our report of even date.

For Arnab Basu & Associates

Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board of
Firm Registration number: 324382E Direegor of CPL Industries Limited
=
ArnaliBasu
Propreitor Subhankar Banerjee atgan [gn.' W‘

Ditectlor Director

DIN: 00137649

Membership No. - 059349

Place: Kolkata
Date:  03.05.2024
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CPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the vear ended 31 March 2024

(¥ Rupees in Hundreed, unless otherwise stated)

A. Cash flow from operating activities:

C.

Profit before tax
Prior Period Adjustment

Operating profit before working capital changes:
Adjustment for:

Taxation

Trade Receivables

Other Current Liabilities

Short Term Loans & Advances

Increase in other non-financial liabilities

Cash generated from operations

Income taxes paid (net of refund)
Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities
Cash flow from financing activities
Net cash (used in) financing activities

Net increase /(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year

Notes:

Year ended Yeur ended Year ended
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
2,136 1,120 (1,676)
T 2,13 1,120 (1,676)
(574) (500) (390)
4,000 4,000 5,000
74 (353) 390
215 (75) (481)
5,851 4,193 2,842
@ @ -
5,849 4,186 2,342
(1,000)
= (1,000)
5,849 4,186 1,842
55,007 50,821 48,979
60,856 55,007 50,821

i) The above Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in Ind AS 7, "Statement of Cash Flows”.

This is the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report of even date,

For Arnab Basu & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration number: 324382E

Arnab Basu

Propreitor

Membership No. - 059349
Place: Kolkata

Date: 03.05.2024

For and on behalf of the Board of
Director of CPL Industdes Limited
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CPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information period ending on 31st March 2024

(¥ Rupees in Hundreed, unless otherwise stated)

Background

CPL Industries Limited ("the Company”) is a Public Limited Company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 & having its registered office in Kolkata, India. The
Company is engaged in the business of contractual service, The CIN of the Company is 1.74210WB1982PL.C035417.

1

,\
B
-~

(b)

Group's background

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of CPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED (the one ol the Parent Company') and other company name
:M/s Zenith Investments Lid &.it's subsidiary (collectively, the Group) for the year ended 31 March 2024

The Parent is a Company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in India. The registered office of the Parent Company is located at 14 Taratala Road, Kolkara -
700 088, India.

The associates company is as follows:

N . . Percentage holding as on
f th 2
Name of the subsidiary Country of incorporation 31 March 2024
Elisha Investments Limited India 28.20%
The other Parent Company(as stated above) holding
aattern
. . Percentage holding as on
Nume of the C 2
ame of the Company Country of incorporation 31 March 2024
Zenith Investments Limited India 71.79%

The Group is primarily engaged in the business of other setvices.

These consolidated financial statements are approved by the Parent Company's Board of Dircctors on 16.05.2024
Basis of preparation:

General information and statement of compliance with Indian Accounting Standards
These financial statements ate the consolidated financial statements of the Group prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS%) notified under
section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read rogether with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

The Consolidated financial statements comiply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) nolified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013

(hereinatter referred o as the “Act”) read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and other relevant

provisions of the Act,

Historical Cost Convention

The consolidated linancial slutements are prepared on a historical cost basis, except investment other than investment in subsidiaties, which is measured at Fair valuc,

Accounting cstimates and judgements:

Preparation of consolidated financial statements requires the use of judgements, estimates and assumptions in the application of accounting policies thal affects the
reported amount of assets, liabilides, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Continuous evaluation of such estimates and judgments are
done based on historical experience and other factors, including future expectations that are believed o be reasonable. Revisions to accounting cstimates are recognised

prospectively,
Details of critical estimates and judgments used which have a significant effect on the earrying amounts of assets and liabilites, are provided in the following notes:

Income tax:
The Patent’s fax jurisdiction is India. Significant judgements ate involved in esimating budgeted profits for the purpose of paying advance

ax, determining the provision

for income taxes, including amount expeeted to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions.

Useful life of property, plant and equipments:
The Group has no assct under this head,

Accounting estimates and judgements:

Impairment of assets:
Refer note 2 (1), (c) and (d) for details.

Estimation of provisions and contingencies:
Refer note 2 (g) for details,

Recognition of deferred rax asscts:
Reter note 2 (h) for details.

Fair value measurements:
When the fair values of financials assets and financial liabilitics recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measured based on yuoted prices in active markets, their fair
value is measured using valuation techniques, including the discounted cash flow model, which involve various judgements and assumptions,

The Group presents all its assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current or non-current classification, Asscts and liabilities are classified as current ot non-
current as per the Group’s normal operating cycle and other criteria as sct out in the Division II of Schedule 11T to the Companies Act, 2013, Based on the nature of
products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Group has ascertained its operating cycle as 12
fi ies. Deferred 1ax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current asscts and non-

months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabil
current liabilities, as the case may be,

Recent accounting pronouncements
Ministey of Corporale Affairs vide notficatdon dated 28 March 2018, has issued the Companies (Indian /
amended rules are effective from 1 April 2018.

counting Standards) Amendments Rules, 2018, These
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(b)

Ind AS 115, Revenuc from contracts with customers
With the notificaion of Ind AS 115, Ind AS 18 - Revenue has been withdrawn from the financial year beginning 1 April 2018 onwards and consequential amendments

have: alsn heen made in ather siandards,

Ind AS 115 promotes to create 4 single model for revenue recognition for contracts, It applies to most revenue arrangements, Among other things, it changes the criteria
for detcrmining whether revenue is tecognised at a point in time or over time, It provides a new contract-based five-step revenue model for revenue recognition and
measurement, Ind AS 115 provides more detailed guidance on specific topics whete existing revenue standard Ind AS 18 is lacking such as multiple clement
arrangements, variable consideration, sale with a right to return, licensing arrangements ete. The Group is evaluating the requirements of the amendment and its impact

on the financial statements.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial siatements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiary. Control is achieved when the Parent Company has:

Power over the investee
- Is exposed or has rights to vatiable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
- Has the ability to use it's power over the inveslee to alTect its retutns.
Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voung rights result in control, To support this presumption and when the Parent Company has less than a majority
ol the voling or similar rights of an investee, the Parent Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an inveslice,
including:
- The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
- Rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
- The Parent Company's voting rights and potential voting rights; and
and dispersion of the holdings ol the other voling right holders.

- The size of the Pacent Company's holding of voting rights relative to the siz

The Parent Company re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or mote of the three clements of
control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Parent Company oblains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Parent Company loses control of the
subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiacy acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the
date the Parent Company gains control undl the date the Parent Company ceases to control the subsidiary,

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accountng policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. 1f a member of the
Group uses accounting policics other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate
adjustments are made to that Group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ¢nsure conformity with the Group’s accounting

policics,

drawn up o same reporting date as that of the Parent Company, Le., year

The financial statements of the subsidiary company used for the purpose of consolidation is
ended on 31 March, When the end of the reposting period of the Parent Company is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation
purposes, additional financial information as of the same date as the financial statements of the Pareat Company to enable the Parent Company o consolidate the

financial information of the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do so.

Consolidation procedure:
Combine like items of assets, liabilitics, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the Parent Company with thosc of its subsidiary. For this purpose, income and

at the acquisition date,

expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabililies recognised in the consolidated financial statements

Offset (climinate) the cartying amount of the Pareat Company’s investment in the subsidiary and the Parent Company’s portion of cquity of the subsidiary. Business
combinations policy explains how to account for any related goodwill,

Eliminate in full intragroup asscts and liabilides, cquity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the Group (profits or losses resulting
from inteagroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are climinated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that
requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12 Jncome Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the climination of profits and

losses resulting from intragroup transactions,

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holdets of the Parent Company and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of the subsidiary
to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group asscts and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation,

Significant accounting policies

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns, trade allowances, rebates, goods and

service tax and amounts collected on behalf of third parties,

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of tevenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic bencfits will flow to the entity and specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities as described below. The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement,

Sale of services:
Revenue is recognised on delivery of services to the customet, in accordance with the terms of sale.

Interest income:
Interest income is recorded on accrual basis using the effective interest rate (RIR) method.

Dividend income:
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established

Impairment of non-financial asscts

Assessment for impairment is done at each Balance Sheet date when there is an indication that a non-financial asset may be impaired. For the purpose of asscssing
impairment, smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows [rom continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
ts, an estimate ol the recoverable amount of the individual asset/cash

assets/groups of assets is considered as a cash generating unit. If any indication of impairment exi
generating unit is made, Asset/cash gencrating unit whose carrying value exceeds theit recoverable amount are written down (o the recoverable amount by recognizing
ssel’s/cash gencrating unit’s fair value less cost of disposal

the impairment loss as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss, Recoverable amount is higher of an
and its value in use. Value in usc is the present value ol estimated future cash flows expected to arise lrom the continuing use of an asset/cash generating unit and from
its disposal at the end of its uscful life. Assessment is also done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised for an
asset/cash generating unit in any prior accounting periods may no longer exist or may have decreased, based on which a reversal of an eatlicr recorded impairmgiatdasss
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recognised in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

Financial instruments

Classification:

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories depending on the Group’s business model for managing such financial asscts and the
contractual cash flow terms of the asset,

those to be measured subsequently at fair value (cither through other comprehensive income, ot through profit or loss), and

those subsequenty measured at amortised cost.

For assets measured at fair value, mins or losses are cither recorded in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss or Other Comprehensive Income. Investments in
debt instruments, if any, are classified depending on the business model managing such investments. The Group re-classifies the debt investments when and only when
there is a change in business model for managing those assets. For investments in equily instruments which are not held for trading, the Group has made an irrevocable
clection at the time of initial recognition to account for such equity investments at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income.

Measurement:
At initial recognition, the Group measures a {inancial asset (other than those cacried at fair value through profit or loss) at its fair value plus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the (inancial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carricd at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in the

consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss as and when they are incurred.

Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business model managing such debt instruments and the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the instrument, There are three measurement categories into which the debt instruments arc classified:

Amortised cost: Business model managing such asset has the objective to realise the contractual cash flows arising from the asset by holding such asset and the
contractual cash tlows represent solely payments of principal and interest on the outstanding amount of principal, measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a
financial asset subsequently measuted at amortised cost is recognised in the consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss when the asset is de-recognised or impaired,

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Business model managing such asset has the objective to collect the conteactual cash flows arising from
such assct and to sale the asset, where such contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest on the outstanding amount of prineipal, measured
at faic value through other comprehensive income ('VOCL), Changes in fair value of such instruments are recognised through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which ate recognised in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. When the
financial asset is de-recognised, the camulalive gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equily to consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and

recognised in other income.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not mect the criteria for amortised cost or FYOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain
or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which it

arises,

Equity instrumcnts:
The Group classifies all its equity investments, if any, at fair value apart from investment in subsidiary. In case of equity instruments not held for trading, Group’s
management has made an irrevocable election to present fair value gains and losses on such equily instruments in other comprehensive income and there is no

subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to the stalement of profit and loss.

Investments in mutual funds:
Investments in shates, il any, are measured at fair value through profit and loss.

Impairment:
The Group assesses the expected credit losses for its financial asscts at amortised cost and FVI'OCI debt instruments. Impairment methodology applied depends on
e in credit risk and the loss amount assessed depends upon past events, present conditions und future economic scenario

whether there has been a significant inerer

For trade receivables only, the Group applics the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 which requires Joss allowance to be recognised at an amount equivalent to
the lifetime expected credit losses from the initial recognition of such receivables irrespective of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

De-recognition:

A financial asset is de-recognised when:

Contractual tight to receive cash flows from such financial asset expires;

Group transters the contractual right to receive cash flows from the financial asset; ot

Group retnins the tight to receive the contractual cash flows from the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay such cash flows to one or more

recipients.

Where the Group has transferred an assct, the Group evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards associated with the ownership of the financial
| asset is de-recognised. Where the Group has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the finaacial asset, the

asset, In such cases, the financi
financial assct is not de-recognised.

Where the Group has neither Lransferred nor retained substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is de-recognised it the
Group does not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Group retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of

continuing involvement in such financial asset.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash-on-hand and demand deposits with banks. The Group considers it's highly liquid, short-term investments (having matarity
less than three months) which can be teadily converted to fixed/determinable amount of money and subject to insignificant cisks arising from changes in their fair values,
as cash cquivalents, Accordingly time deposits with banks along with interest accrued thereon, having otiginal maturity less than three months, is considered as cash

equivalent.

Asscts held for sale
Assets are classitied as held for sale under current assets i their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use and a sale is considered highly probable and is expected (o be sold within one year from the balance sheet date, They are measured al the lower of their earrying

amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for assets such as deferred tax assets, assets atising from employee benefits and (inancial assets which are specifically

exempl from this requirement,
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Trovisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions:

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settde the obligation and a reliable estimate of such obligation can be made, Provisions arc measured at the best cstimate of the
expenditure required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. 11 the effect of time value of money is material i.c., the obligation is to be setded afier a period of
12 months from the end of the reporting date, such provisions are discounted to reflect its present value using a pre-tax discounting rate that reflects the current market
assessments of tme value of money and risks specific to the obligation. When discounting is used, increase in the provision amount due to the passage of time is

recognised as finance cost.

Contingent liabilities:

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurtence or non-
occurrence of one or mote uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is ¢ither not
probable that an outflow ol resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Contingent assets:
Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statement. Flowever when there is a virtual certainty that an inflow of resources embodying economic benelfits will
arise from the contingent asset, such asset and the related income is recognised in the period in which the changes oceurred.

Income tax
Income tax expense for the period is the tax puyable on the current petiod’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax rates with adjustments for changes in
deferred tax assets or liabilities attributable to temporary differences and unused tax losses or credits.

Current tax is calculated based on tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deterted tax is recognised on temporary differences arising from the tax bases ol assets and liabilitics and their respective carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements, Deferred income tax is not accounted Tor if it arises (rom initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that does not result from a business
combination and at the time of such transaction, affects neither the accounting profit or loss nor taxable profit or loss for the period. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax assct is realised or the liability is seitled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tx losses only if it is probable that the futute laxable amounts will be available
against which those temporaty differences/losses can be uilized, Minimum aliernate tax (MAT') credit entilement s recognised as an assct only when and to the extent
there is convincing evidence that normal income tax will be paid during the specified period. In the year in which MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an
asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the consolidated Statement of Profit and TLoss and shown as MAT credit entitlement. This is reviewed at each balance

sheet date and the carrying amount of MAT credit entidement is written down to the extent it is not reasonably certain that normal income tax will be paid during the
~

Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offsetted where the entity has a legally ¢nforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assct
and settle the liability simultancously, Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilitics and
when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority,

Events after reporting date
Where events occurting after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the repotting petiod, the impact of such events is adjusted
within the consolidated financial statements. Otherwise, events after the Balance Sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed.

Earnings equity per share

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding duting the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events
that have changed the number of outstanding equity shates, without a cotresponding change in the resources. For the purpose of caleulating diluted earnings per equity
share, net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares owtstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of
all dilutive potential equity shares. As on the balance sheet dates, the Parent Company has no dilutive potential equity shares,

Ind AS 21 - The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

On 28 March 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting, Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B to
Ind AS 21 - The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates which clarifics the date of the transaction for the putpose ol determining the exchange rate to use on

initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income, when an entity has received or paid advance consideration in a loreign currency., This amendment will come
into force from 01 April 2018, The Company has evaluated the effect of this on the financiai statements and the impact is not material.

nd AS 115 - Revenue from Contract with Custamers

On 28 March 2018, Ministry of Corporate Aftairs (MCA) has notified the Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contract with Customers. The core principle of the new standard
is that an entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer ol promiscd goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be eolitled in exchange for those goods or services, Further the new standard requires enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity's contracts with customers, The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 115 is financial periods beginning on
ot atter 01 April 2018, The effect on adoption of Ind AS 115 on the financial statements is expected to be insignificant.
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CPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024
(R Rupees in Hundreed, unless otherwise stated)
As at As at As at
31st March 2024 31st March 2023  31st March 2022

3 Cash and bank balances

(a) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 14 14 14

Balances with banks
- In current accounts 4,029 401 2,020
Fixed Deposit in Bank 56,813 54,592 48,787
60,856 55,007 50,821

(b) Trade Receivables ~ Othets
(Unsecured and considered good)
Quistanding for s period:-

i. more than 3 years from the date they were due for payment 10,000 14,000 18,000
ii. 2-3 years from the date they were due for payment

iii. 1-2 years from the date they were due for payment

iv. 6 months-1 year from the date they were due for payment
v. Other Trade receivables ( Below 6 months).

10,000 14,000 18,000
4  Other assets
(a) Non-current -
(b) Current
(Unsecured, considered good)
Balances with government authorites (**) 819 1,034 959
819 1,034 959

Balances with government authoritics primarily include amounts realisable from Income Tax authorities. These are expeeted to be realised within a period of one-
kK . 5
% year. Accordingly these balances have been classified as current assets.




CPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

(X Rupees in Hundreed, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
A1st March 2024 31st March 2023
Number Amount Number Amount
5 Equity share capital
Authorized share capital
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each 42,500 4,25,000 42,500 4,25,000
42,500 4,25,000 42,500 4,25,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each 2,461 24,605 2,461 24,605
2,461 24,605 2,461 24,605

(2) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Number Amount Number Amount
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,461 24,605 2,461 24,605
Add : Issucd during the year . . . .
Balance at the end of the year 2,461 24,605 2,461 24,605

(b)  No additional shares were allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shates or pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash during the
last five years. Further, none of the shares were bought back by the Company during the last five years.

c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company:
g gareg pany:

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Name of the shareholders Number Percentage Number  Percentage
(a) Bijon Nag 84,450 34.32% 84,450 34.32%
(b) Priyambada Nag 87,850 35.70% 87,850 35.70%
1,72,300 1,72,300
(d) Disclosure of Share Holding of Promoters in Equity Shares
% Change
Shares held by promoters at the end of the Year during the
Year
S. No. Promoter’s  |No. of Shareq % of total
Name shares
1 Bijon Bhushan Nag 84,450 | 34.32% NIL
2
Preombada Nag 87,850 35.70% NIL
3 BIKRAMJIT NAG 2,000 0.81%
NIL
4 Nurpur Gases Pyt 7,030 2.86%
Ltd
NIL
5 PRITANJALI NAG 2,000 0.81%
NIL
Total 1,83,330 | 74.51% NIL

(¢) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

"The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par valuc of ¥ 10 per share. Such holder of equity share is cntitled to onc vote per share.
In the event of liquidation, the cquity shareholders are entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential
amounts, in proportion to their shareholdings, however, no such preferential amounts exists currently. During this financial year the Company has
not proposed/declared any dividend. Howey, {ﬁixi?}aﬂ?mid\t:‘ul is proposed by the Board of Dircctors, it will be subject to the approval of the

ngyexeefir imease of interim dividend.
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.CPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

(X Rupees in Hundreed, unless otherwise stated)

10

1

@

Other Income

Interest Income
Interest on Income Tax Refund
Service Rendared

Other expenses

Postage

E-voting service charges(NSDL)
Accounting Charges

Bank Charges

Filling I'ees

Demat Charges

Annual Custody Fees(NSDL)
Professional Fees

Professional Tax

Auditor's remuneration (refer note (a) below)
Listing Fees

RTA Charges

Services Rendared

Secretetrial Audit Fees

LLR Fees

General Expenses

Salary (Staff)

Auditor's remuneration

Statutory Audit Fees
Other Audit Fees

Year ended Year ended
31st March 31st March
2024 2023
3,487 2,742
23 -
2,600 2,200
6,110 4,942
< 29
118
10 4
73 156
11 =
212 212
382 168
50 50
177 177
472 578
118 118
500 300
- 100
- 7
21 59
1,800 1,800
3,975 3,822
177 177
177 177
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12 Tax expense
{a) Tncome tax in the statement of profit and loss:

Current tax
Deferred tax

Prior Period Adjustmeat

®) L tax recognised in other h

Deferred tax on fair value gains on investments in equity instruments through OCI

13 Earnings per equity share (EPS)

Net Profit before Dividend
Net profit attributable to equity shareholders
Number of equity shares outstanding during the year

Face value per share
Earnings per share
- Basic earnings pet equity share
- Diluted earnings per equity share

14 Related party disclosures

ii)

i)

Information on related party transactions as required by Ind AS - 24 - Related Party Disclosures for the year

List of related Party
Associates

Name of the Company

Elisha Investments Limited

Transactions with related parties

Particulars

Year ended Year ended
316t March 2024 31s1 March 2023

574 500

2 7

576 507
-15,931 30,335
-15,931 -30,335
1,559 613
2,46,050 2,46,050
10 10
0.0063 0.0025
0.0063 0.0025

Percentage of holding

Year ended Year ended
31st March 2024 31st March 2023

28.20% 28.20%

No related party transactions are there.

Key Management Personnel :

Director Mr. Subhankar Banerjee
Director Mr. Rangan Dasgupta
Director Ms Nupur Somani
Employee Aashika Agarwal
Yearended | Year ended
31st March 31st March
2024 2023
Current Ratio 95.38 103.38
Debt-Equity 0.00 0.54
DSCR 0.00 0.00
Return on Equity 0.46 0.00
Inventory Turnover Ratio 0.00 0.00
Tt. Recy. Turnover Ratio 0.00 0.00
T'r. Paybl. Turnover Ratio 0.00 0.00
Net Capital Turnover Ratio 0.00 0.07
NetProfit Ratio 0.00 0.12
Return on Capital Employed 0.00 0.00
Return on Investment 0.00 0.00

19 Relationship with Struck off Gomyj

Name of struck off Company

Nature of Nature of

Name of struck off Company Investments in|Investments in
Receivables Receivables
Payables Payables
Shares held by |Shares held by
NONE stuck off stuck off
company company
Other Other

outstanding  |outstanding
balances (to be|balances (to be
specified) specified)
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(a) Category wise classification of financial instruments:

A
Y

i)

i)

iv)

&)

Fair value measurement

As at As at

Particulars
3lat March 2024 3lst March 2023

Financial assets:
Mcasured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Investments in unquoted mutual funds

Measured at fair value through Other Comprebensive Tncome (FVTOCI)
Investments in quoted equity instruments {refer note (i) below) 11,26,646 5,51,746
1 in unquoted equity i (tefer note (i) below) 11,20,360 14,84,404

Measured at cost

Cash and cash cquivalents 14 14
Bank halances other than cash and cash cquivalents above 4,029 401
Bank deposits (with onginal matusty of more than 12 months) 56,813 54,592
Derivative instruments -
Loans to employees
Security deposits
Trade reccivables 10,000 14,000
Others 819 1,034

Measured at cost
Investment in equity shares of subsidiary company

Total financial assets 23,18,68L 21,06,191

. Financial liabilities

Measured ot amortised cost

Borrowings (including current matutities)

Tradc payables

Secusities deposits {repayablc on demand)

Other financial liabilities 752 678

‘Total financial liabilities 752 678

Notes:

These investments are not held for trading. Upon application of Ind AS - 109 - Financial Tnstauments, the Company has chosen to measuce these investments in quoted equity instriments at EVTOCI irrevocably as the helieves that presenting fair value gains
and losses relating to these investments in the Sratement of Profit and Loss may not be indicative of the pecformance of the Company.

Fair value hierarchy
The fair value of Ginancal assets and liabilities are included at the amounts that would be received to sell an asset or paid o teansfer a liability in an orderly market between market participants at the measurement date. Methods and assumpions used to estimate the fair
values are consistent in all the years. Fair value of finandal instruments referred to in note (a) above have been classified into three categories depending on the inputs used in the valuation technique. The hierarchy gives the highest prionity to quoted prices in active mackets
for identical assets and liabilities and lowest priority to unobservable entity specific inputs

‘The categodes used are as follows:
- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for financial instruments
- Level 2: The faic value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation rechniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on cntity specific esimates

- Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is inchuded in level 3.

For assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value as at Balance Sheet date, the classification of fair value by category and level on inputs used is gaven below:

As at 31st March 2024:

Particulan Levell Level 2 Level 3

Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL)
Investments in unquoted mutual funds

Designated at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FYTOCI)
Investments in quoted equity instruments
[nvestments in unquoted equity instcuments

11,26,646 .
11,20,360

As at 31 March 2023:

Level | Level 2 Level 3

Measunred at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Investments in unquoted mutual funds

Designated at fair vahze through Other Comprehensive Tncome (FVTOCI)
Investments in quoted equity instruments
Investments in unquoted cquity instruments

5,51,746 .
14,84,404

Computation of fair values
Tnvestments in mutual funds are short-tean investments made in debt or liquid funds whose Fait value are considered as the net asset value (NAV) declaced by their respective fund houses on a daily basis, Thus the declared NAYV is similar to faic market value for these

mutual fund investments since transactions between the investor and fund houses will be carried out at such prces

I in equity i p long tecm steategic investments made in certain listed or unlisted companies. For listed companies, fair valuc is based on quoted matket prices of such instruments as on the Balance Sheet date on the recognized stock exchange
(whete teaded volume is more during last six months). For investments in unquoted secusitics, the management ascertained their fair valuc by using the valuation technique, like Book Value discounted at an appropriate rate which involves various judgements and
assumptons.

Fair value of assets and Liabiliti at cost/: d cost
The carrying amount of financial asscts and financial liabilities d at ised cost are a ble approximation of their fair valucs since the Company does not anticipate that the carrying amount would be significantly different from the values that would be
eventually rececived or settled, Management asscssed that fair values of cash and cash equivalents and trade pagables approsimate their carrying amounts due to the short term ities of these i For long-tecm borrowings at fixed/ floating rates, management

evaluates that their fair value will not be significantly diffeeent from the carcying amount.
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Financial risk management

Company's business activities are exposed to a vatiety of finandial risks, like credit risks, market risks and liquidity risks. Company's senior management is
responsible for cstablishing and monitoting the risk management framework within its overall tisk management objectives and strategies approved by the
Board of Directors. Such tisk management strategies and objectives are established to identify and analyze potential risks faced by the Company, set and
monitor appropriate tisk limits and controls, pedodically review the changes in market conditions and assess risk management performances. Any change
in Company's tisk management objectives and policies need approval of it's Board of Ditectors.

Credit risk
Credit risk refers to tisk that a countetpatty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. Credit risk artises
ptimarily from financial assets such as trade receivables, other balances with banks, loans and other receivables.

i) Trade receivables

Customer credit tisks is managed by each business unit in accordance with the credit policy, procedutes and controls relating to credit risk management.
Credit quality of each individual customer is assessed based on financial positions, past trends, market reputation, prevailing market and economic
conditions, expected business and anticipated regulatory changes. Based on this evaluation, credit limit and credit terms are decided for each individual
customer. Exposute to customer credit tisk is regulatly monitored through credit locks and release.

Impairment of trade receivables is based on expected credit loss model (simplistic approach) depending upon the historical data, present financial
conditions of customers and anticipated regulatory changes.

ii) Other financial instruments

®)

©

@

Credit risks from other financial instruments includes mainly cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks. Such tisks is managed by the central
treasury department of the Company in accordance with Company's overall investment policy approved by its Board of Directors. Investments of surplus
funds are made in short term debt/liquid mutual funds of rated fund houses having the highest credit rating and in shott term time deposits of reputed
banks with a very strong financial position. Investment limits ate set for each mutual fund and bank deposits. Risk concentration is minimized by
investing in a wide range of mutual funds/bank deposits. These investments are reviewed by the Board of Directors on a quartetly basis.

The Company has no exposure to credit risk relating to its cash and cash equivalents. Credit tisk for other financial instruments are monitored by the
central treasury department in accordance with its overall dsk management policies. Impairment of such assets is computed per expected credit loss
model (general approach) assessed on the basis of financial position, detailed analysis and expected business of the counterparty to such financial assets.

Market risk:

Market rsk is the tisk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market prces. Market risks
comptises of three types - interest rate tisk, currency tisk and othet price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected
by market risks include long term borrowings, investments in mutual funds or equity instruments and derivative instruments.

Liquidity risk:

Liquidity tisk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its contractual obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The central treasury
department of the Company manages its liquidity risk by ptepating and continuously monitoting business plans ot tolling cash flow forecasts which
ensures that the funds tequited for cattying on its business operations and meeting its financial liabilities ate available in a timely manner and at an
optimal cost. The Company plans to mect the contractual obligations from its internal accruals and if required, also from fund based and non-fund based
credit limits with banks. Additionally, surplus funds generated from opetations ate patked in bank deposits which can be readily liquidated when required.

The following table shows the remaining contractual matutities of financial liabilities at the repotting date. The amounts reported are on gross and

lyear to 3 yearto

1
3year 5year Tota

Contractual maturity of financial liabilities Upto 1year

As at 31 March 2024
Botrowings (including cutrent matutities) =
Trade payables -
Other financial liabilitics 752 - 752

As at 31 March 2023
Botrowings (including current maturities)
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities 678 - - 678

Capital management

For the putpose of Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity shate capital, other equity reserves and long term borrowed capital less

cash and cash equivalents. The primary objective of capital m'umgcmmra-u“zu maintain an efficient capital structure to reduce the cost of capital, support
l‘é{'g alue! ,Q"r rh cumpnny makes short term botrrowings to meet its wur]%%Sq:H}l}‘z o

cotporate expansion strategies and to maximise sharchol
fFas on thi k ce Sheet date.
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17  First time adoption of Ind AS
These are the Company's first consolidated financial statcments prepared in accordance with Tndian Accounting Standards (Ind AS).

"The accounting policies set out in Note 2 has been applied consistently in preparing the opening Ind AS Balance Sheet as on 1 April 2018 (the Company's date of transition), the
comparative information presented in these standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 and in preparing these consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2020. In preparing its opening Ind As Balance Sheet, the Company has adjusted the amounts reported previously in standalone financial statements prepared in
accordance with the accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standard Rules), 2006 (as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act (Indian GAAP).
An explanation of how the transition from previous Indian GAAP to Ind AS has impacted the Company's financial position, financial pecformance and cash flows is set out in the
foot notes to first ime adaption,

Ind AS 101 has set out certain mandatory exceptions and optional exemptions to be applied for transition from the existing Indian GAAP to Ind AS. The Company has adopted
the following in preparing its opening Ind AS Balance Shect.

(a) Optional exemptions

Designation of previously recognized equity instraments - Ind AS 101 - permits the entity to designate its existing equity instruments oa the basis of the facts and circumstances
existing as on the transition date. The Company has elected to apply this exemption for its long term, strategic investments in equity shares.

(b) Mandatory exceptions

Derecognition of financial assets and lLiabilities - Ind AS 101 requires a first time adopter to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively from the date of
transition. Alternatively such first time adopter can apply such de-recognition provisions retrospectively from a date of Company's choice, if adequate information required to
apply Ind AS 109 to financial assets and liabilities de-recognized previous to the date of transition was initially available at the time of such transactions. The Company has elected
to apply the de-recognition provision of Tnd AS 109 prospectively from the date of transition.

-
=

ii) Classification and measurement of financial asscts - Ind AS 101 provides that classification and measurement of financial assets recognized earlier under the previous [ndian
GAAP should be based upon facts and circumstances existing as on the transition date. The Company has assessed the same accordingly.

iii) Estimates - An entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made at the same date in accordance with previous
GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in error. Ind AS estimates as at 1 Apnl 2018
are consistent with the estimates as at the same datc made in conformity with previous GAAP

(c) Reconciliation between previous GAAP and Ind AS

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity, total comprehensive income and cash flows for the prior periods. The following tables represeat the reconciliation from previous
Indian GAAP to Ind AS

i) Effect of Ind AS adoption on total equity:

Particulars As at As at As at
u 31st March 2024 31st March 2023 31st March 2022

Equity as per previous GAAP 24,605 24,605 24,605
Adjustments:

Effect of using EIR method for measurement of long-term borrowings

Effect of measuring current investments at fair value

Effect of measuning non-current investments at fair value 15,54,533 13,27,305 15,53,286
Total adjustment 15,54,533 13,27,305 15,53,286

Total equity as per Ind AS 15,79,138 13,51,910 15,77,891

) Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2019:

i

- Year ended
P 1
articulars Notes 31 March 2020

Profit after tax as per previous GAAP m
Adjustments:

Fair valuation of investments in mutual funds carried at FVTPL

EIR impact on foreign currency borrowings

Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit plans

Impact on account of forward contract

Profit after tax as per Ind AS 111

Other comprehensive income:
Changes in fair value of equity instruments (10,95,687)
Actuarial gain / loss on defined bencfit plans

(10,95,687)
Total comprehensive income as per Ind AS (10,95,576)

Effect of Ind AS adoption on the standalone Statement of Cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2019
There are no material differences between the consolidated statements of cash flows prepared under previous GAAP and Ind AS,

i

=

(d) Fair valuation of investments
Under the previous Indian GAAP investments were classified into current and non-current, based on the intended holding period and realisability. Tavestments in non current
equity instruments were measuced at cost less provision for decline (other than temporary decline) in the value of such investments while short teem mutual funds were valued at
cost or net realisable value whichever is lower as at each Balance Sheet date

Under Ind AS, these investments are required to be measured at fair value. Non-current equity instruments has been designated as fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI) and changes in its fair value as on the transition date is accounted in Equity instcumeat through OCI with an equivalent change in inv value. Subseq change
in fair value for year ended 31 March 2019 is accounted under OCIL. This resulted in an increase of X 57.71 lacs in investment and an equivalent amount of increase in other equity
as on the transition date. For the year ended 31 March 2020 there is a further fair value loss of ¥ 1095.52 lacs accounted for under OCI reserves with corresponding increase in
investment values.

(¢) Deferred tax
Erstwhile Indian GAAP required recognition of deferred tax on timing differences while Ind AS 12 requires deferred tax to be recognized for temporary differences. Accordingly,

the Company has recognized deferred tax on all adj made on Wﬁw orrespondmg adjustments in other equity.
O Mo i
SV ---H:f’.\(\
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18 Additional Regulatory Information

Additional Regulatory Information pursuant to Clause 6L of General Instructions for preparation of Balance Sheet as given in Part | of Division il of
Scheduie Ill to the Companies Act, 2013, are given hereunder to the extent relevant and other than those given elsewhere in any other notes to the

Financial Statements.

st for the year ended 31st March 2024

Ratio
Particulars e oo
Formula 31-Mar-24 | 31-Mar-23 % Variance variance
Current Ratio Current assets/ Current liabilit 95.38 103.38 -8 Increase in current assets
Debt Equity Rati Total debt/ Shareholder's
ebl Equity Ratio Equity 0.00 0.54 -100 Increase in current assets
. . Very Poor Performance due
Debt Service Coverage Ratio Earn_lng/sDa\g:lISable_for b to downward Market
e 0.00 0.00 0 condition after COVID
[Net Profits after taxes — Ve
N ) g ) ry Poor Performance due
Return on Equity Ratio Preference Dividend (if gny)] to downward Market
/Avg. Shareholders Equity 04560|  0.0004] 111900 |condition after COVID
Very Poor Performance due
Inventory Tumover Ratio Sales/ Average Inventory to downward Market
0.00 0.00 0 condition after COVID
N Very Poor Performance due
;’atf’e Receivables Tumover |\t Gredit Sales/ Average to downward Market
atia Accounls Receivable 0.00 0.00 0 condition after COVID
Trade Payables Turover Net Credit Purchases/ 1!%%&?; rZeJ:;(rr:nce dus
Ratio Average Trade Payable 0.00 0.00 ) condition after COVID
Net Capital Turnover Ratio
Net Sales/ Working Capitat #DIV/O! 0.07 #DIVIO! Increase in current assets
Very Poor Performance due
Net Profit Ratio % Net Profit/ Net Sales 0.00 0.12 -100 to downward Market
condition after COVID
Earning before interest and Very Poor Performance due
Return on Capital employed |taxes (EBIT) to downward Market
/ Capital Employed 0.0000 0.0005 -100 conditicn after COVID
investment Income generated
Return on Investment :mrg IIrRIesled ) " Very Poor Performance due
run ds | vlerage o 91 to downward Market
unds in treasury invesiments| 4 go500|  0.00000 0 condition after COVID

The title in respect of self-constructed buildings and title deeds of all other immovable properties other than properties where the Company is the
p lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), disclosed in the financial statements included under Property, Plant
and Equipment are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any
Benami property.

d The Company does not have enjoyed any Working Capital limit from the Banks of from Financial institutions.

e The Company has not been declared as a willful defaulter by any lender who has powers to declare a company as a willful defaulter at any time
during the financial year or after the end of reporting period but before the date when the financial statements are approved

f The Company does not have any transactions with struck-off companies.

g The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies (ROC) beyond the
stipulated time limit.

h The Company has compiled with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act 2013 read with
Companies (Restrictions on number of Layers) Rules,2017.

i The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(is), including foreign entities(intermediaries),
with the understanding that the intermediary shall;

i. Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(Ultimate Beneficiaries),

or
ii. Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

j The Company has not received any funds from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall;

i. Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party

(Uitimate beneficiaries),
or
ii. Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.




